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This report contains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of the
Company. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties and are based on the beliefs and assumptions of management of the
Company and on the information available to management at the time that these disclosures were prepared. These statements can be identified by
the use of wordslike “expect,” “anticipate,” “ estimate” and “believe,” variations of these words and other similar expressions. Readers should not
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a number of important factors could cause actual resultsto differ materially from thosein
the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual resultsto differ materially include, but are not limited to, (1) competition in the
Company’s markets, (2) changesin the interest rate environment, (3) general national, regional or local economic conditions may be less favorable
than expected, resulting in, among other things, a deterioration in credit quality and the possibleimpairment of collectibility of loans, (4) legislative
or regulatory changes, including changesin accounting standards, (5) significant changesin the federal and state legal and regulatory
environment and tax laws, (6) theimpact of changesin monetary and fiscal policies, laws, rules and regulations and (7) other risks and factors
identified in the Company’s other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company undertakes no obligation to update any
forward-looking statements.
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PART |

ITEM 1— BUSINESS
General

Oak Ridge Financia Services, Inc. (referred to asthe “Company” or by the use of “we,” “our” or “us”) wasincorporated under the laws of the
State of North Carolinaon April 20, 2007, at the direction of the Board of Directors of Bank of Oak Ridge (the “Bank™), for the purpose of serving
as the bank holding company for the Bank and became the holding company for the Bank on April 20, 2007. To become the Bank’s holding
company, Registrant received approval of the Federal Reserve Board aswell as the Bank’s shareholders. Upon receiving such approval, each
share of $5.00 par value common stock of the Bank was exchanged on a one-for-one basis for the no par value common stock of the Registrant.

The Bank wasincorporated on April 6, 2000 as a North Carolina-chartered commercial bank and opened for business on April 10, 2000. Including
its main office, the Bank operatesfive (5) full service branch officesin Oak Ridge, Summerfield, and Greensboro, North Carolina.

The Registrant operates for the primary purpose of serving as the holding company for the Bank. The Registrant’s headquarters are located at
2211 Oak Ridge Road, Oak Ridge, North Carolina 27310.

The Bank operates for the primary purpose of serving the banking needs of individuals, and small- to medium-sized businessesin its market area.
The Bank offers arange of banking servicesincluding checking and savings accounts, commercial, consumer and personal loans, and mortgage
services and other associated financial services.

Lending Activities

General. The Bank provides awide range of short to medium-term commercial, mortgage, construction and personal loans, both secured and
unsecured. It also makesreal estate mortgage and construction loans and Small Business Administration guaranteed loans. Many of the
commercia loans are collateralized with real estate in the Bank’s market but such collateral is mainly a secondary, and not primary, source of
repayment. The Bank has maintained a balance between variable and fixed rate loans within its portfolio. Variable rate |oans accounted for 55% of
the loan balances outstanding at December 31, 2007 while fixed rate loans accounted for 45% of the balances.

The Bank’sloan policies and procedures establish the basic guidelines governing its lending operations. Generally, the guidelines address the
types of loans that the Bank seek, target markets, underwriting and collateral requirements, terms, interest rate and yield considerations and
compliance with laws and regulations. All loans or credit lines are subject to approval procedures and amount limitations. These limitations apply
to the borrower’ s total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank, including the indebtedness of any guarantor. The policies are reviewed and
approved at least annually by the board of directors of the Bank. The Bank supplements its own supervision of the loan underwriting and approval
process with periodic loan audits by internal loan examiners and outside professionals experienced in loan review work.

Commercial Mortgage Loans. The Bank originates and maintains a significant amount of commercial real estate loans. Thislending involves
loans secured principally by commercial office buildings, both investment and owner occupied. The Bank requires the personal guaranty of
principals and ademonstrated cash flow capability sufficient to service the debt. The real estate collateral isasecondary source of repayment.

L oans secured by commercial real estate may be in greater amount and involve a greater degree of risk than one to four family residential mortgage
loans. Payments on such |oans are often dependent on successful operation or management of the properties. The Bank also makes loans secured
by commercial/investment properties provided the subject property is either pre-leased or pre-sold before the Bank commitsto finance its
construction.
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Construction Loans. Another of the Bank’s primary lending focuses is construction/devel opment lending. The Bank originates one to four family
residential construction loans for the construction of custom homes (where the home buyer is the borrower) and provides financing to builders
and consumers for the construction of homes. The Bank finance “ starter” homes aswell as “high-end” homes. The Bank generally receives apre-
arranged permanent financing commitment from an outside banking entity prior to financing the construction of pre-sold homes. The Bank is
active in the construction market and makes construction loans to builders of homes that are not pre-sold, but limits the number of such loansto
any one builder. Thistype of lending isonly done with local, well-established builders and not with large or national tract builders. The Bank lend
to buildersin its market who have demonstrated a favorable record of performance and profitable operations. The Bank limit the number of unsold
homes for each builder but there is no limit for pre-sold homes. The Bank will also finance small tract developments and sub-divisions; however,
the Bank seek to be only one of anumber of financial institutions making construction loans in any one tract or sub-division. The Bank endeavor
to further limit its construction lending risk through adherence to established underwriting procedures and the requirement of documentation of all
draw requests. The Bank requires personal guarantees of the principals and demonstrated secondary sources of repayment on construction loans.

Commercial Loans. Commercial businesslending is another focus of the Bank’s lending activities. Commercial loans include secured loans for
working capital, expansion and other business purposes. Short-term working capital |oans generally are secured by accounts receivable, inventory
and/or equipment. Lending decisions are based on an evaluation of the financial strength, cash flow, management and credit history of the
borrower, and the quality of the collateral securing the loan. With few exceptions, the Bank requires personal guarantees of the principals and
secondary sources of repayment, primarily adeed of trust on local real estate. Commercial loans generally provide greater yields and reprice more
frequently than other types of loans, such as commercial mortgage loans. More frequent repricing means that yields on the Bank’s commercial
loans adjust more quickly with changesin interest rates.

Loansto Individuals, Home Equity Lines of Credit and Residential Real Estate L oans. Loans to individuals (consumer loans) include
automobile loans, boat and recreational vehicle financing, home equity and home improvement loans and miscellaneous secured and unsecured
personal loans. Consumer loans generally can carry significantly greater risksthan other loans, even if secured, if the collateral consists of rapidly
depreciating assets such as automobiles and equipment. Repossessed collateral securing adefaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate
secondary source of repayment of the loan. Consumer loan collections are sensitive to job loss, illness and other personal factors. The Bank
attempt to manage the risks inherent in consumer lending by following established credit guidelines and underwriting practices designed to
minimizerisk of loss.

Residential real estate loans are made for purchasing and refinancing one to four family properties. The Bank offer fixed and variable rate options,
but generally limit the maximum fixed rate term to five years. The Bank provides customers access to long-term conventional real estate loans
through its mortgage |oan department, which originates loans and brokers them for sale in the secondary market. Such loans are closed by
mortgage brokers and are not funded by us. The Bank anticipate that it will continue to be an active originator of mortgage loans and only hold for
its own account a small number of well-collateralized, non-conforming residential loans.

Loan Approvals. The Bank’sloan policies and procedures establish the basic guidelines governing lending operations. Generally, the guidelines
address the type of loans that the Bank seek, target markets, underwriting and collateral requirements, terms, interest rate and yield considerations
and compliance with laws and regulations. All loans and credit lines are subject to approval procedures and amount limitations. Depending upon
the loan requested, approval may be granted by the individual loan officer, the Bank’s officers’ loan committee or, for the largest relationships, the
directors’ loan committee. The Bank’s full Board is required to approve any single transaction of $2.0 million or more. These amount limitations
apply to the borrower’ s total outstanding indebtedness to the Bank, including the indebtedness of any guarantor. The policies are reviewed and
approved at least annually by the Board of Directors. Responsibility for loan review, underwriting, compliance and document monitoring resides
with the senior credit officer. Heisresponsible for loan processing and approval. On an annual basis, the board of directors of the Bank determines
the President’ s lending authority, who then delegates lending authorities to the senior credit officer and other lending officers of the Bank.
Delegated authorities may include loans, letters of credit, overdrafts, uncollected funds and such other authorities as determined by the board of
directors or the President within his delegated authority.

Credit Cards. The Bank offersacredit card on an agency basis as an accommodation to its customers. The Bank assumes none of the
underwriting risk.
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Loan Participations. From time to time the Bank purchase and sell oan participations to or from other banks within and outside its market area. All
loan participations purchased have been underwritten using the Bank’s standard and customary underwriting criteria.

Commitmentsand Contingent Liabilities

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank entersinto various types of transactions that include commitmentsto extend credit. The Bank apply
the same credit standards to these commitments as the Bank use in all of itslending activities and have included these commitmentsin itslending
risk evaluations. The Bank’s exposure to credit loss under commitments to extend credit is represented by the amount of these commitments. See
Note M of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Asset Quality

The Bank considers asset quality to be of primary importance, and employs athird party loan reviewer to ensure adherence to the lending policy
as approved by its Board of Directors. It isthe responsibility of each lending officer to assign an appropriate risk grade to every loan originated.
Credit administration, through the loan review process, validates the accuracy of theinitial risk grade assessment. In addition, asagiven loan’s
credit quality improves or deteriorates, it is credit administration’s responsibility to change the borrower’srisk grade accordingly. At least annually
the Bank undergoes aloan review by an outside third party who reviews compliance with its underwriting standards and risk grading and provides
areport detailing the conclusions of that review to the Bank’s Board of Directors and senior management. The Bank’s Board of Directorsrequires
management to address any criticisms raised during the loan review and to take appropriate actions where warranted.

Investment Activities

The Bank’sinvestment portfolio plays a major role in management of liquidity and interest rate sensitivity and, therefore, is managed in the context
of the overall balance sheet. The securities portfolio generates anominal percentage of the Bank’sinterest income and serves as a necessary
source of liquidity. Debt and equity securities that will be held for indeterminate periods of time, including securities that the Bank may sell in
response to changesin market interest or prepayment rates, needs for liquidity and changesin the availability of and theyield of alternative
investments, are classified as available for sale. The Bank carry these investments at market value, which it generally determine using published
guotes or apricing matrix obtained at the end of each month. Unrealized gains and losses are excluded from its earnings and are reported, net of
applicable incometax, as acomponent of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders' equity until realized.

Deposit Activities

The Bank provides arange of deposit services, including non-interest bearing checking accounts, interest bearing checking and savings accounts,
money market accounts and certificates of deposit. These accounts generally earn interest at rates established by management based on
competitive market factors and management’s desire to increase or decrease certain types or maturities of deposits. The Bank use brokered

deposits to supplement its funding sources. However, the Bank strives to establish customer relations to attract core deposits in non-interest
bearing transactional accounts and thus reducesits cost of funds.

Borrowings

Asadditional sources of funding, the Bank uses advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (the “FHLB”) under aline of credit equal
to 30% of the Bank'stotal assets ($78.59 million at December 31, 2007). Outstanding advances at December 31, 2007 were $16.0 million. Pursuant to
collateral agreements with the FHLB, at December 31, 2007 advances were secured by investment securities available for sale with afair value of
$9.8 million and by loans with a carrying amount of $33.0 million, which approximates market value.

The Bank may purchase federal funds through five unsecured federal funds lines of credit aggregating $3.5 million. These lines are intended for
short-term borrowings and are subject to restrictions limiting the frequency and terms of the advances. These lines of credit are payable on
demand and bear interest based upon the daily federal funds rate. Short-term borrowings may also consist of securities sold under arepurchase
agreement. Securities sold under repurchase agreements generally mature within one to four days from the transaction date. There were no federal
funds purchased at December 31, 2007.
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Junior Subordinated Debt

In June of 2007, the Company placed $8.0 million in trust preferred securities through its subsidiary, Oak Ridge Statutory Trust | (the “Trust”). The
Trust invested the total proceeds from the sale of itstrust-preferred securitiesin junior subordinated deferrable interest debenturesissued by the
Bank. Thetrust preferred securities pay cumulative cash distributions quarterly at an annual rate, reset quarterly, equal to three-month LIBOR plus
160 basis points. The dividends paid to holders of the trust preferred securities, which are recorded as interest expense, are deductible by the Bank
for income tax purposes. The trust preferred securities are redeemable on or after July 2012. The Bank has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the
trust-preferred securities through the combined operation of the debentures and other related documents. The Bank’s obligation under the
guarantee is unsecured and subordinate to senior and subordinated indebtedness. The principal reason for issuing trust preferred securitiesis that
the proceeds from their sale qualify as Tier 1 capital for regulatory capital purposes (subject to certain limitations), thereby enabling the Bank to
enhanceitsregulatory capital positions without diluting the ownership of its stockholders.

I nvestment Services

The Bank’s Investment Services Group, formed in 2003, services its banking offices and employs two financial advisors. Two additional financial
advisors were hired in 2005 and generally operate independently of the Bank and do business as Oak Ridge Wealth Management. These four
employees are also employees of Financial Network Investment Corporation. The Investment Services Group offers financial planning services and
sellsinvestment products such as mutual funds, equities, and fixed and variable annuities. The Bank anticipates continuing to expand this division
during 2008.

Courier Services

The Bank offers courier servicesto its customers, for aminimal fee, as a convenience and ademonstration of its commitment to superior customer-
service. Its courierstravel to the customer’slocation, pick-up non-cash deposits from the customer and deliver those depositsto the Bank. The
Bank believesits couriers serve as ambassadors for the Bank and enhance its presence in the communitiesit serves.

Banking Technology

Because of the level of sophistication of its markets, the Bank commenced operations with afull array of technology available for its customers.
The Bank’s customers have the ability to perform on-line banking and bill paying, access on-line check images, make transfers, initiateswire
transfer requests and stop payment orders of checks. The Bank providesits customers with imaged check statements, thereby eliminating the cost
of returning checksto customers and eliminating the clutter of canceled checks. Through branch image capture technology, the Bank offers same
day credit for deposits made prior to 6:00.

Strategy

The Bank’s strategy is focused towards achieving growth and performance through exceptional customer service and sound asset quality,
providing a comprehensive combination of products and servicesthat allows it to compete with large and small financial institutions, and being
ableto rapidly adapt to the rapidly changing financial servicesindustry.

Primary Market Area

The Bank’s primary market area consists of Oak Ridge, Summerfield and Greensboro, North Carolinaand surrounding areas. Its main officeis
located in Oak Ridge, Guilford County, North Carolinaand its four branch offices are located in Summerfield and Greensboro, North Carolina. The
Bank’sloans and deposits are primarily generated from the Oak Ridge, Summerfield and Greensboro communities. To meet funding needs, the
Bank occasionally solicits deposits outside its primary market area using a national certificate of deposit rate service.

Competition

Commercial banking in North Carolinais highly competitive, duein large part to North Carolina’s early adoption of statewide branching. Over the
years, federal and state legislation (including the elimination of restrictions on interstate banking) has heightened the competitive environment in
which all financial institutions conduct their business, and the potential for competition among financial institutions of all types hasincreased
significantly. North Carolinaisthe home of two of the largest commercial banksin the United States, each of which has branches located in the
Bank’s banking market, and the Bank competes with other commercial banks, savings banks and credit unions.

6
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According to amarket share report prepared by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) dated June 30, 2007, there were 142 offices
of 26 different commercial banks and one savings bank in Guilford County. Four banks (WachoviaBank, BB& T, Bank of America, and SunTrust)
controlled an aggregate of 68.3 percent of all depositsin Guilford County, while the Bank held a 2.59 percent market share. Thus, the Bank’s market
is highly competitive, and customers tend to aggressively “shop” the terms of both their |oans and deposits.

Interest rates, both on loans and deposits, and prices of fee-based services are significant competitive factors among financial institutions
generally. Other important competitive factors include office location, office hours, the quality of customer service, community reputation,
continuity of personnel and services, and, in the case of larger commercial customers, relative lending limits and the ability to offer sophisticated
cash management and other commercial banking services. Many of the Bank’s competitors have greater resources, broader geographic markets,
more extensive branch networks, and higher lending limits than the Bank. They also can offer more products and services and can better afford
and make more effective use of media advertising, support services and electronic technology than the Bank. In terms of assets, the Bank is smaller
than many commercial banksin North Carolina, and there is no assurance that the Bank will be or continue to be an effective competitor in its
banking market. However, the Bank believes that community banks can compete successfully by providing personalized service and making
timely, local decisions, and that further consolidation in the banking industry islikely to create additional opportunitiesfor community banksto
capture deposits from affected customers who may become dissatisfied as their financial institutions grow larger. Additionally, the Bank believes
that the continued growth of its banking market affords an opportunity to capture new deposits from new residents.

Substantially all of the Bank’s customers are individuals and small- and medium-sized businesses. The Bank attemptsto differentiate itself from its
larger competitors with afocus on relationship banking, personalized service, direct customer contact, innovative products and services; aswell as
its ability to make credit and other business decisionslocally. The Bank believesthat its focus allows the Bank to be more responsiveto its
customers' needs and more flexible in approving loans based on collateral quality and personal knowledge of its customers.

Employees

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had 59 full-time employees and seven part-time employees. The Bank and its employees are not parties to any
collective bargaining agreement, and the Bank considersits relations with its employees to be good.

REGULATION
Regulation of the Banks

Banks are extensively regulated under both federal and state law. Generally, these laws and regulations are intended to protect depositors and
borrowers, not shareholders. To the extent that the following information describes statutory and regulatory provisions, it isqualified in its
entirety by reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions. Any change in applicable law or regulation may have amaterial effect
on the business of the Registrant and the Bank.

State Law. The Bank is subject to extensive supervision and regulation by the North Carolina Commissioner of Banks (the “ Commissioner”). The
Commissioner oversees state laws that set specific requirements for bank capital and regulate depositsin, and loans and investments by, banks,
including the amounts, types, and in some cases, rates. The Commissioner supervises and performs periodic examinations of North Carolina-
chartered banks to assure compliance with state banking statutes and regulations, and the Banksis required to make regular reports to the
Commissioner describing in detail the resources, assets, liabilities and financial condition of the Bank. Among other things, the Commissioner
regulates mergers and consolidations of state-chartered banks, the payment of dividends, loans to officers and directors, record keeping, types
and amounts of |oans and investments, and the establishment of branches.

Deposit I nsurance. The Bank’s deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund, or DIF, of the FDIC. The DIF isthe
successor to the Bank Insurance Fund and the Savings Association Insurance Fund, which were merged in 2006. The Bank’s deposits, therefore,
are subject to FDIC deposit insurance assessment.
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The FDIC amended its risk-based deposit assessment system for 2007 to implement authority granted by the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform
Act of 2005, or the Reform Act. Under the revised system, insured institutions are assigned to one of four risk categories based on supervisory
evaluations, regulatory capital levels and certain other factors. Aninstitution’s assessment rate depends upon the category towhichitis
assigned. Risk Category I, which contains the least risky depository institutions, is expected to include more than 90% of al institutions. Unlike
the other categories, Risk Category | contains further risk differentiation based on the FDIC's analysis of financial ratios, examination component
ratings and other information. Assessment rates are determined by the FDIC and currently range from five to seven basis points for the heal thiest
institutions (Risk Category 1) to 43 basis points of assessable deposits for the riskiest (Risk Category V). The FDIC may adjust rates uniformly
from one quarter to the next, except that no single adjustment can exceed three basis points.

The FDIC isauthorized to set the reserve ratio for the DIF annually at between 1.15% and 1.5% of estimated insured deposits, in contrast to the
statutorily fixed ratio of 1.25% under the old system. The ratio, which isviewed by the FDIC asthe level that the funds should achieve, was
established by the agency at 1.25% for 2007. The Reform Act also provided for the possibility that the FDIC may pay dividendsto insured
institutions once the DIF reserve ratio equals or exceeds 1.35% of estimated insured deposits. The Reform Act also provided for a one-time credit
for eligible institutions based on their assessment base as of December 1996. Subject to certain limitations with respect to institutions that are
exhibiting weaknesses, credits can be used to offset future assessments until exhausted.

Capital Requirements. The federal banking regulators have adopted certain risk-based capital guidelinesto assist in the assessment of the capital
adequacy of abanking organization’s operations for both transactions reported on the balance sheet as assets and transactions, such as | etters of
credit, and recourse arrangements, which are recorded as off balance sheet items. Under these guidelines, nominal dollar amounts of assets and
credit equivalent amounts of off balance sheet items are multiplied by one of several risk adjustment percentages which range from 0% for assets
with low credit risk, such as certain U.S. Treasury securities, to 100% for assets with relatively high credit risk, such as business loans.

A banking organization’s risk-based capital ratios are obtained by dividing its qualifying capital by itstotal risk- adjusted assets. The regulators
measure risk-adjusted assets, which include off balance sheet items, against both total qualifying capital (the sum of Tier 1 capital and limited
amounts of Tier 2 capital) and Tier 1 capital. “Tier 1,” or core capital, includes common equity, qualifying noncumulative perpetual preferred stock
and minority interestsin equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill and other intangibles, subject to certain exceptions. “Tier 2,”
or supplementary capital, includes among other things, limited-life preferred stock, hybrid capital instruments, mandatory convertible securities,
qualifying subordinated debt, and the allowance for loan and | ease | osses, subject to certain limitations and less required deductions. The
inclusion of elements of Tier 2 capital is subject to certain other requirements and limitations of the federal banking agencies. Banks and bank
holding companies subject to the riskbased capital guidelines are required to maintain aratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of at |east 4%
and aratio of total capital to risk weighted assets of at |east 8%. The appropriate regulatory authority may set higher capital requirements when
particular circumstances warrant. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank was classified as “well-capitalized” with Tier 1 and Total Risk-Based Capital of
9.46% and 10.40%, respectively.

The federal banking agencies have adopted regul ations specifying that they will include, in their evaluations of abank’s capital adequacy, an
assessment of the bank’sinterest rate risk exposure. The standards for measuring the adequacy and effectiveness of abanking organization’s
interest rate risk management include a measurement of board of directors and senior management oversight, and a determination of whether a
banking organization’s procedures for comprehensive risk management are appropriate for the circumstances of the specific banking organization.

Failure to meet applicable capital guidelines could subject a banking organization to avariety of enforcement actions, including limitationson its
ability to pay dividends, the issuance by the applicable regulatory authority of a capital directive to increase capital and, in the case of depository
institutions, the termination of deposit insurance by the FDIC, as well as the measures described under the “ Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation Improvement Act of 1991" below, as applicable to undercapitalized institutions. In addition, future changes in regulations or practices
could further reduce the amount of capital recognized for purposes of capital adequacy. Such a change could affect the ability of the Bank to grow
and could restrict the amount of profits, if any, available for the payment of dividends to the sharehol ders.

Federal Deposit I nsurance Corporation | mprovement Act of 1991. In December 1991, Congress enacted the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (the “ FDIC Improvement Act”), which substantially revised the bank regulatory and funding provisions of
the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and made significant revisionsto several other federal banking statutes. The FDIC Improvement Act provides
for, among other things:

* publicly available annual financial condition and management reports for certain financial institutions, including audits by independent
accountants;
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* theestablishment of uniform accounting standards by federal banking agencies;

* theestablishment of a“prompt corrective action” system of regulatory supervision and intervention, based on capitalization levels,
with greater scrutiny and restrictions placed on depository institutions with lower levels of capital; and

*  restrictions or prohibitions on accepting brokered deposits, except for institutions, which significantly exceed minimum capital
reguirements.

The FDIC Improvement Act also provides for increased funding of the FDIC insurance funds and the implementation of risk-based premiums.

A central feature of the FDIC Improvement Act isthe requirement that the federal banking agencies take “prompt corrective action” with respect to
depository institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements. Pursuant to the FDIC Improvement Act, the federal bank regulatory
authorities have adopted regulations setting forth afive-tiered system for measuring the capital adequacy of the depository institutions that they
supervise. Under these regulations, a depository institution is classified in one of the following capital categories: “well capitalized,” “adequately
capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “ significantly undercapitalized” and “ critically undercapitalized.” An institution may be deemed by the regulators
to be in a capitalization category that islower than isindicated by its actual capital position if, among other things, it receives an unsatisfactory
examination rating with respect to asset quality, management, earnings or liquidity.

The FDIC Improvement Act provides the federal banking agencies with significantly expanded powers to take enforcement action against
institutions, which fail to comply with capital or other standards. Such action may include the termination of deposit insurance by the FDIC or the
appointment of areceiver or conservator for theinstitution. The FDIC Improvement Act also limits the circumstances under which the FDIC is
permitted to provide financial assistance to an insured institution before appointment of a conservator or receiver.

I nternational Money Laundering Abatement and Financial Anti-Terrorism Act of 2001. On October 26, 2001, the USA Patriot Act of 2001 was
enacted (the “Patriot Act”). The Patriot Act contains the International Money Laundering Abatement and Financial Anti-Terrorism Act of 2001,
which sets forth anti-money laundering measures affecting insured depository institutions, broker-dealers and other financial institutions. The
Patriot Act requires U.S. financial institutions to adopt new policies and procedures to combat money laundering and grants the Secretary of the
Treasury broad authority to establish regulations and to impose requirements and restrictions on the operations of financial institutions.

Miscellaneous. The dividends that may be paid by each bank are subject to legal limitations. In accordance with North Carolina banking law,
dividends may not be paid unless abank’s capital surplusisat least 50% of its paid-in capital.

The earnings of the Bank will be affected significantly by the policies of the Federal Reserve Board, which isresponsible for regulating the United
States money supply in order to mitigate recessionary and inflationary pressures. Among the techniques used to implement these objectives are
open market transactionsin United States government securities, changesin the rate paid by banks on bank borrowings, and changesin reserve
requirements against bank deposits. These techniques are used in varying combinations to influence overall growth and distribution of bank
loans, investments, and deposits, and their use may also affect interest rates charged on loans or paid for deposits.

The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board have had a significant effect on the operating results of commercial banksin the past and are
expected to continue to do so in the future. In view of changing conditions in the national economy and money markets, as well as the effect of
actions by monetary and fiscal authorities, no prediction can be made as to possible future changesin interest rates, deposit levels, |oan demand
or the business and earnings of the Bank.

The Bank cannot predict what legislation might be enacted or what regulations might be adopted, or if enacted or adopted, the effect thereof on
the Bank’s operations.
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Regulation of the Company

Federal Regulation. The Company is subject to examination, regulation and periodic reporting under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as
administered by the Federal Reserve Board. The Federal Reserve Board has adopted capital adequacy guidelines for bank holding companieson a
consolidated basis.

The Company is required to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board to acquire all, or substantially all, of the assets of any bank or
bank holding company. Prior Federal Reserve Board approval isrequired for the Company to acquire direct or indirect ownership or control of any
voting securities of any bank or bank holding company if, after giving effect to such acquisition, it would, directly or indirectly, own or control
more than five percent of any class of voting shares of such bank or bank holding company.

The merger or consolidation of the banks with each other or with another bank, or the acquisition by the Registrant of assets of another bank, or
the assumption of liability by the Company to pay any depositsin another bank, will require the prior written approval of the primary federal bank
regulatory agency of the acquiring or surviving bank under the federal Bank Merger Act. The decision is based upon a consideration of statutory
factors similar to those outlined above with respect to the Bank Holding Company Act. In addition, in certain such cases an application to, and the
prior approval of, the Federal Reserve Board under the Bank Holding Company Act and/or the North Carolina Banking Commission may be
required.

The Company isrequired to give the Federal Reserve Board prior written notice of any purchase or redemption of its outstanding equity securities
if the gross consideration for the purchase or redemption, when combined with the net consideration paid for al such purchases or redemptions
during the preceding 12 months, is equal to 10% or more of the Company’s consolidated net worth. The Federal Reserve Board may disapprove
such a purchase or redemption if it determines that the proposal would constitute an unsafe and unsound practice, or would violate any law,
regulation, Federal Reserve Board order or directive, or any condition imposed by, or written agreement with, the Federal Reserve Board. Such
notice and approval is not required for a bank holding company that would be treated as “well capitalized” under applicable regulations of the
Federal Reserve Board, that has received acomposite “1” or “2” rating at its most recent bank holding company inspection by the Federal Reserve
Board, and that is not the subject of any unresolved supervisory issues.

The status of the Company as aregistered bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act does not exempt it from certain federal
and state laws and regul ations applicable to corporations generally, including, without limitation, certain provisions of the federal and state
securities laws.

In addition, abank holding company is prohibited generally from engaging in, or acquiring five percent or more of any class of voting securities of
any company engaged in, non-banking activities. One of the principal exceptionsto this prohibition isfor activities found by the Federal Reserve
Board to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. Some of the principal activitiesthat
the Federal Reserve Board has determined by regulation to be so closely related to banking asto be a proper incident thereto are:

*  making or servicing loans;

*  performing certain data processing services,

*  providing discount brokerage services;

* acting asfiduciary, investment or financial adviser;

* leasing personal or real property;

*  making investmentsin corporations or projects designed primarily to promote community welfare; and

e acquiring savings and loan association.
In evaluating awritten notice of such an acquisition, the Federal Reserve Board will consider various factors, including among others the financial
and managerial resources of the notifying bank holding company and the relative public benefits and adverse effects which may be expected to

result from the performance of the activity by an affiliate of such company. The Federal Reserve Board may apply different standards to activities
proposed to be commenced de novo and activities commenced by acquisition, in whole
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or in part, of agoing concern. The required notice period may be extended by the Federal Reserve Board under certain circumstances, including a
notice for acquisition of a company engaged in activities not previously approved by regulation of the Federal Reserve Board. If such a proposed
acquisition is not disapproved or subjected to conditions by the Federal Reserve Board within the applicable notice period, it is deemed approved
by the Federal Reserve Board.

However, with the passage of the Gramm-L each-Bliley Financia Services Modernization Act of 1999, which became effective on March 11, 2000
(the“Modernization Act”), the types of activitiesin which abank holding company may engage were significantly expanded. Subject to various
limitations, the Modernization Act generally permits a bank holding company to elect to become a“financial holding company.” A financial
holding company may affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies and engage in other activitiesthat are “financial in nature.” Among
the activities that are deemed “financial in nature” are, in addition to traditional lending activities, securities underwriting, dealing in or making a
market in securities, sponsoring mutual funds and investment companies, insurance underwriting and agency activities, certain merchant banking
activities and activities that the Federal Reserve Board considersto be closely related to banking.

A bank holding company may become afinancial holding company under the Modernization Act if each of its subsidiary banksis “well
capitalized” under the FDIC Improvement Act prompt corrective action provisions, iswell managed and has at |east a satisfactory rating under the
Community Reinvestment Act. In addition, the bank holding company must file a declaration with the Federal Reserve Board that the bank holding
company wishes to become afinancial holding company. A bank holding company that falls out of compliance with these requirements may be
required to cease engaging in some of its activities. The Registrant has not yet elected to become afinancial holding company.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On July 30, 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “ Sarbanes-Oxley Act”) was signed into law and became some
of the most sweeping federal |egislation addressing accounting, corporate governance and disclosure issues. The impact of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Actiswide-ranging asit appliesto all public companies and imposes significant new requirements for public company governance and disclosure
reguirements.

In general, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act mandatesimportant corporate governance and financial reporting requirements intended to enhance the
accuracy and transparency of public companies’ reported financial results. It establishes responsibilities for corporate chief executive officers,
chief financial officers and audit committeesin the financial reporting process and creates a new regulatory body to oversee auditors of public
companies. It backs these reguirements with SEC enforcement tools, increases criminal penalties for federal mail, wire and securities fraud, and
creates criminal penalties for document and record destruction in connection with federal investigations. It also increases the opportunity for more
private litigation by lengthening the statute of limitations for securities fraud claims and providing federal corporate whistleblower protection.

The economic and operational effects of thislegislation on public companies, including the Bank, is significant in terms of the time, resources and
costs associated with complying with the law. Because the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, for the most part, applies equally to larger and smaller public
companies, the Bank is presented with additional challenges as a smaller, community-oriented financial institution seeking to compete with larger
financial institutionsin its market.

Capital Requirements. The Federal Reserve Board uses capital adequacy guidelinesin its examination and regulation of bank holding companies.
If capital falls below minimum guidelines, a bank holding company may, among other things, be denied approval to acquire or establish additional
banks or non-bank businesses. The Federal Reserve Board's capital guidelines establish the following minimum regulatory capital regquirements for
bank holding companies:

* aleverage capital requirement expressed as a percentage of adjusted total assets;

* arisk based requirement expressed as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets; and

* aTier 1leverage requirement expressed as a percentage of adjusted total assets.
The leverage capital requirement consists of aminimum ratio of total capital to total assets of 4%, with an expressed expectation that banking
organizations generally should operate above such minimum level. The risk-based requirement consists of aminimum ratio of total capital to total
risk-weighted assets of 8%, of which at |east one-half must be Tier 1 capital (which consists principally of shareholders equity). The Tier 1
leverage requirement consists of aminimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to total assets of 3% for the most highly rated companies, with minimum

requirements of 4% to 5% for all others. As of December 31, 2007, the Company was classified as “well-capitalized” with Tier 1 and Total Risk-
Based Capital of 10.34% and 12.26%, respectively.
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Therisk-based and leverage standards presently used by the Federal Reserve Board are minimum requirements, and higher capital levelswill be
required if warranted by the particular circumstances or risk profiles of individual banking organizations. Further, any banking organization
experiencing or anticipating significant growth would be expected to maintain capital ratios, including tangible capital positions (i.e., Tier 1 capital
less all intangible assets), well above the minimum levels.

Source of Strength for Subsidiaries. Bank holding companies are required to serve as a source of financial strength for their depository institution
subsidiaries, and, if their depository institution subsidiaries become undercapitalized, bank holding companies may be required to guarantee the
subsidiaries’ compliance with capital restoration plans filed with their bank regulators, subject to certain limits.

Dividends. As abank holding company that does not, as an entity, currently engage in separate business activities of amaterial nature, the
Company’s ability to pay cash dividends depends upon the cash dividends the Company receives from the Bank. At present, the Company’s only
source of income isdividends paid by the Bank and interest earned on any investment securities the Company holds. The Company must pay all
of its operating expenses from funds it receives from the Bank. Therefore, shareholders may receive dividends from the Company only to the extent
that funds are available after payment of its operating expenses and the board of directors decides to declare adividend. In addition, the Federal
Reserve Board generally prohibits bank holding companies from paying dividends except out of operating earnings, and the prospective rate of
earnings retention appears consistent with the bank holding company’s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The Bank
expect that, for the foreseeable future, any dividends paid by the Bank to uswill likely be limited to amounts needed to pay any separate expenses
of the Company and/or to make required payments on its debt obligations, including the interest payments on its junior subordinated debt.

The FDIC Improvement Act requires the federal bank regulatory agencies biannually to review risk-based capital standardsto ensure that they
adequately address interest rate risk, concentration of credit risk and risks from non-traditional activities and, since adoption of the Riegle
Community Development and Regulatory Improvement Act of 1994, to do so taking into account the size and activities of depository institutions
and the avoidance of undue reporting burdens. In 1995, the agencies adopted regulations requiring as part of the assessment of an institution’s
capital adequacy the consideration of (a) identified concentrations of credit risks, (b) the exposure of the institution to a decline in the value of its
capital dueto changesin interest rates and (c) the application of revised conversion factors and netting rules on the institution’s potential future
exposure from derivative transactions.

In addition, the agencies in September 1996 adopted amendments to their respective risk-based capital standards to require banks and bank
holding companies having significant exposure to market risk arising from, among other things, trading of debt instruments, (1) to measure that risk
using an internal value-at-risk model conforming to the parameters established in the agencies’ standards and (2) to maintain acommensurate
amount of additional capital to reflect such risk. The new rules were adopted effective January 1, 1997, with compliance mandatory from and after
January 1, 1998.

Subsidiary banks of abank holding company are subject to certain quantitative and qualitative restrictionsimposed by the Federal Reserve Act on
any extension of credit to, or purchase of assets from, or letter of credit on behalf of, the bank holding company or its subsidiaries, and on the
investment in or acceptance of stocks or securities of such holding company or its subsidiaries as collateral for loans. In addition, provisions of
the Federal Reserve Act and Federal Reserve Board regulations limit the amounts of, and establish required procedures and credit standards with
respect to, loans and other extensions of credit to officers, directors and principal shareholders of the Bank, the Registrant, and any subsidiary of
the Registrant and related interests of such persons. Moreover, subsidiaries of bank holding companies are prohibited from engaging in certain tie-
in arrangements (with the holding company or any of its subsidiaries) in connection with any extension of credit, lease or sale of property or
furnishing of services. Any loans by a bank holding company to a subsidiary bank are subordinate in right of payment to deposits and to certain
other indebtedness of the subsidiary bank. In the event of a bank holding company’s bankruptcy, any commitment by the bank holding company
to afederal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of a subsidiary bank would be assumed by the bankruptcy trustee and entitled to a
priority of payment. This priority would also apply to guarantees of capital plans under the FDIC Improvement Act.
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I nter state Branching

Under the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Act (the “Riegle-Neal Act”), the Federal Reserve Board may approve bank holding
company acquisitions of banksin other states, subject to certain aging and deposit concentration limits. Accordingly, banksin one state may
merge with banks in another state, unless the other state has chosen not to implement this section of the Riegle-Neal Act. These mergers are also
subject to similar aging and deposit concentration limits.

North Carolina“opted-in” to the provisions of the Riegle-Neal Act. Asaresult, an out-of-state bank that does not already maintain abranchin
North Carolinawas permitted to establish and maintain a de novo branch in North Carolina, or acquire abranch in North Carolina, if the laws of the
home state of the out-of-state bank permit North Carolina banks to engage in the same activitiesin that state under substantially the same terms as
permitted by North Carolina. Also, North Carolina banks may merge with out-of-state banks, and an out-of-state bank resulting from such an
interstate merger transaction may maintain and operate the branches in North Carolina of amerged North Carolina bank, if the laws of the home
state of the out-of-state bank involved in the interstate merger transaction permit interstate merger.

The Company cannot predict what legislation might be enacted or what regul ations might be adopted, or if enacted or adopted, or the effect
thereof onits operations.

ITEM 1A—RISK FACTORS
Risk Factors of the Company

The Company may not be ableto maintain and manageits growth, which may adver sely affect itsresults of operationsand financial condition and
thevalue of its common stock.

The Company'’s strategy has been to increase the size of the Bank by opening new offices and aggressively pursuing business devel opment
opportunities. The Bank has grown rapidly since its commenced operations. The Company can provide no assurance that the Bank will continue
to be successful in increasing the volume of loans and deposits at acceptable risk levels and upon acceptabl e terms while managing the costs and
implementation risks associated with its growth strategy. There can be no assurance that the Bank’s further expansion will be profitable or that the
Bank will continue to be able to sustain its historical rate of growth, either through internal growth or through successful expansion of its markets,
or that the Bank will be able to maintain capital sufficient to support its continued growth. If the Bank grows too quickly, however, and is not able
to control costs and maintain asset quality, rapid growth also could adversely affect itsfinancial performance. The Company may acquire other
banks as a means to expand into new markets or to capture additional market share. The Company is unable to predict whether or when any
prospective acquisitions will occur or the likelihood of completing an acquisition on favorable terms and conditions. Any acquisition involves
certain risksincluding, but not limited to:

« difficulties assimilating acquired operations and personnel;

*  potential disruptions of its ongoing businesses,

* thediversion of resources and management time;

* thepossibility that uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies may not be maintained,

*  risksassociated with entering new markets in which the Bank has little or no experience;

* thepotential impairment of relationships with employees or customers as aresult of changes in management;
« difficultiesin evaluating the historical or future financial performance of the acquired business; and

*  brand awarenessissues related to the acquired assets or customers.

If the Company decides to make an acquisition, there can be no assurance that the acquired bank would perform as expected.
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The Company’srecent operating results may not be indicative of itsfuture operating results.

The Company may not be able to sustain its historical rate of growth. Because of itsrelatively small size and shorter operating history, it will be
difficult for the Company to replicateits historical earnings growth asit continuesto expand. Consequently, its historical results of operations will
not necessarily beindicative of its future operations. Various factors, such as economic conditions, regulatory and legisl ative considerations, and
competition, may also impede the Company’s ability to expand its market presence. If the Company experiences asignificant decreasein its
historical rate of growth, itsresults of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected because a high percentage of its operating
costs are fixed expenses.

A decreasein interest rates could adver sely impact the Company’s profitability.

The Company’sresults of operations may be significantly affected by the monetary and fiscal policies of the federal government and the
regulatory policies of government authorities. A significant component of its earningsisthe Bank’s net interest income. Net interest income isthe
difference between income from interest-earning assets, such as loans, and the expense of interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and the
Bank’s borrowings. Like many financial institutions, the Bank is subject to therisk of fluctuationsin interest rates. A significant decreasein
interest rates could have a material adverse effect on its net income as the Bank would expect the yields on its earning assets to decrease more
quickly than the cost of itsinterest-bearing deposits and borrowings.

The Company’s profitability depends significantly on economic conditionsin itsmarket area.

The Company’s success depends to alarge degree on the general economic conditionsin Guilford County and adjoining markets. The local
economic conditions in these areas have a significant impact on the amount of loans that the Bank makes to its borrowers, the ability of its
borrowersto repay these loans and the value of the collateral securing these loans. A significant decline in general economic condition caused by
inflation, recession, unemployment or other factors beyond its control would impact these local economic conditions and could negatively affect
the Bank’s financial condition and performance.

Thelack of seasoning of the Bank’sloan portfolio makesit difficult to assessthe adequacy of itsloan lossreserves accur ately.

The Bank attempts to maintain an appropriate allowance for loan losses to provide for potential lossesin itsloan portfolio. The Bank periodically
determine the amount of the allowance based on consideration of several factors, including:

* anongoing review of the equality, mix, and size of its overall loan portfolio;

* itshistorical loan loss experience;

* evaluation of economic conditions;

* regular reviews of loan delinquencies and loan portfolio quality; and

* theamount and quality of collateral, including guarantees, securing loans.
However, there is no precise method of predicting credit losses, since any estimate of loan losses is necessarily subjective and the accuracy
depends on the outcome of future events. In addition, due to the Bank’s rapid growth over the past several years and itslimited operating history,
alarge portion of theloansin itsloan portfolio was originated recently. In general, loans do not begin to show signs of credit deterioration or
default until they have been outstanding for some period of time, aprocessreferred to as “ seasoning.” Asaresult, a portfolio of older loans will
usually perform more predictably than a newer portfolio. Because the Bank’sloan portfolio isrelatively new, the current level of delinquencies and
defaults may not be representative of the level that will prevail when the portfolio becomes more seasoned, which may be higher than current

levels. If charge-offsin future periods increase, the Bank may be required to increase its provision for loan losses, which would decrease its net
income and possibly its capital.
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If the Bank experiencesgreater loan lossesthan anticipated, it will have an adver se effect on its net income.

While therisk of nonpayment of loansisinherent in banking, if the Bank experiences greater nonpayment levelsthan it anticipates, its earnings
and overall financia condition, aswell as the value of its common stock, could be adversely affected.

The Bank cannot assure you that its monitoring procedures and policies will reduce certain lending risks or that its allowance for |oan losses will
be adequate to cover actual losses. In addition, as aresult of the rapid growth in itsloan portfolio, loan losses may be greater than management’s
estimates of the appropriate level for the allowance. L oan losses can cause insolvency and failure of afinancial institution and, in such an event its
shareholders could lose their entire investment. In addition, future provisions for loan losses could materially and adversely affect its profitability.
Any loan losses will reduce the loan loss allowance. A reduction in the loan loss allowance will be restored by an increasein the Bank’s provision
for loan losses. Thiswould reduce the Bank’s earnings, which could have an adverse effect on its stock price.

Liquidity isessential to the Bank’sbusinessand it relies, in part, on external sour cesto finance a significant portion of its operations.

Liquidity isessential to the Bank’s business. Itsliquidity could be substantially negatively affected by itsinability to access secured lending
markets, brokered deposit markets or raise funding in the long-term or short-term capital markets. Factors that the Bank cannot control, such as
disruption of the financial markets or negative views about the financial servicesindustry generally, could impair its ability to raise funding. In
addition, the Bank’s ability to raise funding could beimpaired if the FHLB or deposit brokers devel op a negative perception of itslong-term or
short-term financial prospects. Such negative perceptions could be developed if the Bank suffersadeclinein the level of the Bank’s business
activity, regulatory authorities take significant action against it, or it discovers employee misconduct or illegal activity, among other things. If the
Bank were unable to raise funds using the methods described above, it would likely need to liquidate unencumbered assets, such asitsinvestment
and loan portfolios, to meet maturing liabilities. The Bank may be unable to sell some of its assets, or it may have to sell assets at a discount from
market value, either of which could adversely affect its operations.

The Company heavily relies on the services of key personnel.

Ronald O. Black, the president and chief executive officer of the Company and the Bank, has substantial experience with its operations and has
contributed significantly to its growth since its’ founding. The loss of the services of Mr. Black or of one or more of the key members of our
executive management team may have amaterial adverse effect on the Bank’s operations. If Mr. Black or other members of the executive
management team were no longer employed by it, the ability of the Company, to implement its growth strategy could be impaired.

Theability toretain and attract qualified employeesiscritical to the success of the Bank’s businessand the failureto do so may materially
adver sely affect its performance.

Its people are its most important resource and competition for qualified employeesisintense. In order to attract and retain qualified employees, the
Bank must compensate such employees at market levels. Those levels have caused employee compensation to be the Bank’s greatest expense as
compensation is highly variable and moves with performance. If the Bank are unable to continue to attract and retain qualified employees, or if
compensation costs required to attract and retain employees become more expensive, its performance, including its competitive position, could be
materially adversely affected.

The success of the Company’s growth strategy depends on its ability to identify and retain individuals with experience and relationshipsin the
marketsin which the Company intendsto expand.

The Company may expand its banking network over the next several years, not just in its existing core market area, but also in other community
markets throughout central North Carolina and other contiguous markets. To expand into new markets successfully, the Company must identify
and retain experienced key management memberswith local expertise and relationships in these markets. The Company expects that competition
for qualified management in the markets in which it may expand will be intense and that there will be alimited number of qualified personswith
knowledge of and experience in the community banking industry in these markets. Even if the Company identifies individualsthat it believes could
assist it in establishing a presencein anew market, it may be unable to recruit these individual s away from more established banks. In addition, the
process of identifying and recruiting individual s with the combination of skillsand attributes required to carry out its strategy is often lengthy.
The Company’sinability to identify, recruit, and retain talented personnel to manage new offices effectively would limit its growth and could
materially adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, and results of operations.

15



Table of Contents

New or acquired bank office facilitiesand other facilities may not be profitable.

The Company may not be able to identify profitable locations for new bank offices and the costs to start up new bank office facilities or to acquire
existing bank offices, and the additional coststo operate these facilities, may increase its noninterest expense and decrease earningsin the short
term. If offices of other banks become available for sale, the Company may acquire those offices. It may be difficult to adequately and profitably
manage its growth through the establishment or purchase of bank offices. In addition, the Company can provide no assurance that any such
officeswill successfully attract enough depositsto offset the expenses of their operation.

The Company issubject to operational risk and an operational failure could materially adver sely affect its businesses.

Operational risk refersto the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and/or systems. Operational risk also refersto
the risk that external events, such as external changes (e.g., natural disasters, terrorist attacks and/or health epidemics), failures or frauds, will
result in losses to its businesses.

The Bank’s businessis highly dependent on its ability to process, on adaily basis; alarge number of transactions and the transactions the Bank
processes have become increasingly complex. The Bank performs the functions required to operate its business either by itself or through
agreements with third parties. The Bank rely on the ability of its employees, itsinternal systems and systems at technology centers operated by
third parties to process high numbers of transactions. In the event of a breakdown or improper operation of its or third-party’s systems or improper
action by third parties or employees, the Bank could suffer financial 1oss, an impairment to its liquidity, a disruption of its businesses, regulatory
sanctions and damage to its reputation.

In order to be profitable, the Company must compete successfully with other financial institutions, which have greater resour ces and capabilities
than it does.

The banking businessin North Carolinain general, and in the Triad areain particular, which is part of its market area, is extremely competitive.
Most of the Company’s competitors are larger and have greater resources than the Bank does and have been in existence alonger period of time.
The Bank will have to overcome historical bank-customer relationshipsto attract customers away from its competition. The Bank competes with
the following types of institutions:

. other commercial banks . securities brokerage firms
. savings banks . mortgage brokers

. thrifts . insurance companies

. credit unions . mutual funds

. consumer finance companies . trust companies

Some of the Company’s competitors are not regulated as extensively asit is and, therefore, may have greater flexibility in competing for business.
Some of these competitors are subject to similar regulation but have the advantages of larger established customer bases, higher lending limits,
extensive branch networks, numerous automated teller machines, greater advertising-marketing budgets or other factors.

Applicable North Carolinalaw determines the Bank’slegal lending limit. The size of the loans, which it can offer to its customers, may belessthan
the size of the loans that larger competitors are able to offer. Thislimit may affect to some degree the Bank’s success in establishing relationships
with the larger businessesin its market.

The Company and the Bank ar e subject to extensiveregulation that could limit or restrict itsactivities.

The Company and the Bank operate in a highly regulated industry and are subject to examination, supervision, and comprehensive regul ation by
the Commissioner, the FDIC, and the Federal Reserve Board. Its compliance with these regulationsis costly and restricts certain of its activities,
including payment of dividends, mergers and acquisitions, investments, |oans and interest rates charged, interest rates paid on deposits, and
locations of offices. The Company and the Bank must also meet regulatory capital
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requirements. If the Bank fails to meet these capital and other regulatory requirements, its financial condition, liquidity, and results of operations
would be materially and adversely affected. The failure by the Company and the Bank to remain “well capitalized” and “well managed” for
regulatory purposes could affect customer confidence, its ability to grow, its cost of funds and FDIC insurance, its ability to pay dividends on
common stock, and its ability to make acquisitions.

The laws and regulations applicabl e to the banking industry could change at any time, and the Bank cannot predict the effects of these changes
on its business and profitability. For example, new legislation or regulation could limit the manner in which the Company and the Bank may
conduct their business, including its ability to obtain financing, attract deposits, and make loans. Many of these regulations are intended to
protect depositors, the public, and the FDIC, not shareholders. In addition, the burden imposed by these regulations may place us at acompetitive
disadvantage compared to competitors who are less regulated. The laws, regulations, interpretations, and enforcement policies that apply to us
have been subject to significant change in recent years, sometimes retroactively applied, and may change significantly in the future. The Bank’s
cost of compliance could adversely affect its ability to operate profitably.

The Company’sgrowth may requireusto raise additional capital that may not be available when it isneeded, or at all.

The Company and the Bank are required by regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support their operations. The Company
anticipates that their capital resources will satisfy its capital requirements for the foreseeable future. They may at some point, however, need to
raise additional capital to support its continued growth. The Company’s ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will depend in part on
conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are outside its control, and on itsfinancial performance. Accordingly, the Bank may be unable
to raise additional capital, if and when needed, on terms acceptable to us, or at all. If the Bank cannot raise additional capital when needed, its
ability to further expand its operations through internal growth and acquisitions could be materially impaired. In addition, if the Company issues
additional equity capital, theinterests of existing shareholders would be diluted.

Effortsto comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will involve significant expenditures, and non-compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act may
adver sely affect us.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the related rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC that are now applicable to us, have increased the
scope, complexity, and cost of corporate governance, reporting, and disclosure practices. The Company has experienced, and it expectsto
continue to experience, greater compliance costs, including costs related to internal controls, as aresult of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Company
expects these rules and regulations to continue to increase its accounting, legal, and other costs, and to make some activities more difficult, time
consuming, and costly. In the event that the Company is unable to achieve or maintain compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related rules,
it may be adversely affected.

The Company is evaluating itsinternal control systemsin order to allow management to report on, and its independent registered public
accounting firm to attest to, itsinternal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. If the Company
identifies significant deficiencies or material weaknessesinitsinternal control over financial reporting that it cannot remediate in atimely manner,
or if the Company is unableto receive a positive attestation from its independent registered public accounting firm with respect to itsinternal
control over financial reporting, the trading price of its common stock could decline, the Company’s ability to obtain any necessary equity or debt
financing could suffer, and, if accepted for listing, its common stock could ultimately be delisted from the NASDAQ Global Market. In this event,
the liquidity of the Company’s common stock would be severely limited and the market price of its common stock would likely decline significantly.

In addition, the new rules adopted as aresult of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could make it more difficult or more costly for the Company to obtain
certain types of insurance, including directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, which could make it more difficult for usto attract and retain
qualified personsto serve on its Board or as executive officers.

Risks Related to an Investment in the Company’s Common Stock

Itssecuritiesarenot FDIC insured.

Its common stock is not a savings or deposit account or other obligation of the bank, and is not insured by the FDIC or any other governmental
agency and is subject to investment risk, including the possible loss of principal.
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The Company does not plan to pay cash dividendsfor the foreseeable future.

The Company does not expect to pay cash dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future, asit intendsto retain earningsto provide the
capital necessary to fund its growth strategy. The Company’s ability to declare and pay cash dividends will be dependent upon, among other
things, restrictionsimposed by the reserve and capital requirements of North Carolinaand federal banking regulations, the Company’sincome and
financial condition, tax considerations, and general business conditions. The Company’s dividend payments, if any, will be made from dividends
received from the Bank. The Bank may pay dividends only out of undivided profits (retained earnings) as determined pursuant to North Carolina
General Statute § 53-87. Regulatory authorities may limit the payment of dividends by the Bank if it determines that such limitation isin the public
interest and is necessary to ensure financial soundness of the Bank.

We haveimplemented anti-takeover devicesthat could makeit moredifficult for another company to acquir e us, even though such an acquisition
may increase shar eholder value.

In some cases, sharehol ders would receive a premium for their sharesif another company acquired the Company. However, state and federal law
and the Company’ s articles of incorporation and bylaws make it difficult for anyone to acquire us without approval of its Board. For example, the
Company'’s articles of incorporation require a supermajority vote of two-thirds of its outstanding common stock in order to affect a sale or merger
of the Company in certain circumstances. The Company’s bylaws also divide the Board of Directorsinto three classes of directors serving
staggered three-year terms with approximately one-third of the Board of Directors elected at each annual meeting of shareholders. The
classification of directors makesit more difficult for shareholdersto change the composition of the Board. Asaresult, at least two annual meetings
of shareholders would be required for the shareholders to change a majority of the directors, whether or not a change in the Board would be
beneficial and whether or not amajority of shareholders believe that such a change would be desirable. Consequently, atakeover attempt may
prove difficult, and shareholders may not realize the highest possible price for their securities.

Theholder of the Bank’sjunior subordinated debenturehasrightsthat are senior to those of its common shar eholders.

The Company has supported its continued growth through the issuance of trust-preferred securities from the Trust and an accompanying sale of
an $8.2 million junior subordinated debenture to the Trust. Payments of the principal and interest on the trust preferred securities of this Trust are
conditionally guaranteed by the Bank. Further, the accompanying junior subordinated debenture that the Bank issued to the Trust is senior to its
shares of common stock. As aresult, the Company and the Bank must make payments on the junior subordinated debenture before any dividends
can be paid on the Company’s common stock and, in the event of its bankruptcy, dissolution or liquidation, the holder of the junior subordinated
debenture must be satisfied before any distributions can be made on its common stock. The Bank hasthe right to defer distributions on the junior
subordinated debenture (and the related trust preferred securities) for up to five years, during which time no dividends may be paid on its common
stock.

ITEM 1A—UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The following table summarizes certain information about the headquarters of the Company, the Bank’s branch officesin Summerfield and
Greensboro, as well asinformation related to the Company’s administrative offices as of December 31, 2007.

Approximate
Year Square
Office Location Opened Footage Owned or Leased Lease Terms

Headquarters 2003 6,800 Building Owned/Land Leased @ Ground lease expires in 2023 with two (2)
2211 Oak Ridge Road ten-year renewal options
Oak Ridge, North Carolina

Summerfield Office 2003 3,300 L eased Expiresin 2023 with four (4) five-year
4423 NC Highway 220 North renewal options
Summerfield, North Carolina

Operations Center 2001 2,800 Owned @
1684 NC Highway 68 North
Oak Ridge, North Carolina

Greensboro Office 2005 3,500 Building Owned/Land L eased Ground lease expiresin 2025 with four (4)
1597 New Garden Road five-year renewal options
Greensboro, North Carolina

Irving Park Office 2006 2,500 L eased Expiresin 2013 with (2) five-year renewal
2102 Elm Street, Suite C options
Greensboro, North Carolina

Lake Jeanette Office Anticipated 5,800 Owned
400 Pisgah Church Road 2008
Greensboro, North Carolina

(1) TheBank leasesthe 2.04 acres of land underlying this owned building.
(2) TheBank ownsthe mobile unit and purchased the 1.2 acres of land on which the Bank’s mobile unit and improvementsreside in 2004 for a
purchase price of $522,720.

At December 31, 2007, the total consolidated net book value of the Company’sland, buildings and leasehold improvements totaled
approximately $5,381,000. The total net book value of itsfurniture, fixtures and equipment at December 31, 2007 was approximately $1,374,000. Each
of the existing and proposed facilities and locations of the Company and its subsidiariesis considered by the management to be in good condition
and adequately covered by insurance.

Any property acquired as aresult of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified asreal estate owned until thetimeitissold or
otherwise disposed of by the Bank in an effort to recover itsinvestment. At December 31, 2007, the Bank had no real estate acquired in settlement
of loans.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company or one of its subsidiaries may becomeinvolved in legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of
business. However, subject to the uncertainties inherent in any litigation, management believes there currently are no pending or threatened
proceedings that are reasonably likely to result in amaterial adverse change in the Company’s financial condition or operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERSTO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matter was submitted to avote of stockholders of the Company during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The Bank’s common stock began trading on April 6, 2000 and began quotation on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “BKOR”
on January 29, 2004. Prior to January 29, 2004, there was no established public market for the common stock. In April of 2007, the Bank was
reorganized as a subsidiary of the Company. The common stock of the Company continues to be quoted on the NASDAQ Global Market under
the symbol “BKOR.”

As of February 29, 2008, the Company had approximately 991 stockholders of record.

Thefollowing table lists the high and low sales information for the Company’s common stock for the periodsindicated. Pricesin the table
reflect inter-deal er prices, without retail mark-up, markdown, or commission, and may not represent actual transactions. Through February 27, 2008,
the last sale of the Company’s common stock quoted on the NASDAQ Capital Market was at a price of $9.90 per share.

Sales Price Range

Quarter High Low
2007 First $13.00 $11.54
Second $12.25 $10.33
Third $11.21 $10.00
Fourth $10.75 $ 9.00

Sales Price Range

Quarter High Low
2006 First $13.75 $11.30
Second $14.98 $13.00
Third $13.94 $12.50
Fourth $14.00 $12.55

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table presents the number of shares of common stock to be issued upon the exercise of outstanding options as of
December 31, 2007, the weighted-average price of the outstanding options and the number of options remaining that may be issued under the
Company'’s stock option plans described below.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

@ (©
Number of shares (b) Number of sharesremaining
to beissued upon Weighted-aver age available for futureissuance under
exer cise of exercise price of equity compensation plans (excluding
Plan category outstanding options outstanding options shares reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by the
Bank’s security holders 352,171 $ 9.87 3,600
Equity compensation plans not approved by
the Bank’s security holders -0- N/A -0-
Total 352,171 $ 9.87 3,600

The Company did not repurchase any shares of common stock during the fourth quarter of 2007.

See“ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS-Supervision and Regulation” above for regulatory restrictions which limit the ability of the
Company and the Bank to pay dividends. Neither the Company nor the Bank has paid any cash dividends since its inception.

See“ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT” below for information on equity
compensation plansinformation.
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ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALY SISOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s discussion and analysisisintended to assist readersin understanding and evaluating the financial condition and
consolidated results of operations of the Company. The analysisincludes detailed discussions for each of the factors affecting the Company’s
operating results and financial condition for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. It should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notesincluded in this report and the supplemental financial data appearing throughout this
discussion and analysis.

The following discussion and analysis contains the consolidated financial results for the Company and Bank of Oak Ridge for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006. The financial statements presented contain the consolidation of Oak Ridge Financial Services, Inc. and the Bank only.
The Company and its consolidated subsidiary are collectively referred to herein as the Company unless otherwise noted.

Executive Overview
Significant accomplishments
In the opinion of the Company’ s management, the Company’s most significant accomplishments during 2007 were as follows:
* Total assetsincreased 27 percent;
* Total loansincreased 33 percent;
*  Total depositsincreased 27 percent;
*  Total noninterest-bearing depositsincreased 7 percent;
*  Tota noninterest income increased 24 percent;
*  Raised $8.3 million in subordinated debentures that can be used as capital at both the Bank and Company level;

o Asset quality improved, asreflected in adecline from 2006 to 2007 in nonperforming assets and net loan charge-offsto average loans
outstanding;

*  Third Greensboro Office opened in early 2008

e Continued to market the Bank’s new “ Open Early, Open Late” and “ Six-day Branch Banking at all Locations” strategy implemented in
August of 2006

Challenges

The Company has grown at arapid pace since the opening of the Bank in April of 2000, and its business has become more dynamic and
complex in recent years as the Bank has enhanced or added delivery channels, products and services, and lines of businesses. Whilethe
achievement of the Company'’s strategic initiatives and established long-term financial goalsis subject to many uncertainties and challenges,
management has identified the challenges that are most relevant and most likely to have a near-term effect on operations, which are presented
below:

. Increasing core deposits;
. Increasing interest and noninterest revenue;
. Improving efficiency and controlling noninterest expenses;

. Maintaining its net interest margin in adeclining interest rate environment;

. Continuing to maintain its strong asset quality;

. Controlling costs associated with the current heightened regul atory environment;

. The economic environment in its geographic market;

. Volatility in the mortgage banking business;

. Competition from bank and nonbank financial service providers; and

. Intense price competition.

The following presents management’s discussion and analysis of the Company’s consolidated financial condition and consolidated results

of operations. Y ou should read the discussion in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto. This
discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual results could differ significantly from

those described in the forward-looking statements as aresult of various factors. This discussion isintended to assist in understanding its financial
condition and results of operations.
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Comparison of Results of Operationsfor theYears Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Net | ncome

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company reported a decrease in net income of 20 percent to $1.0 million compared to $1.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006. Net income per diluted share decreased 19 percent to $0.55 compared to $0.68 for the prior year period.
Returns on average assets and average equity were 0.44 percent and 5.94 percent, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
0.68 percent and 7.92 percent for the prior year period.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company reported an increase in net income of 59 percent to $1.3 million compared to $794,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2005. Net income per diluted share increased 55 percent to $0.68 compared to $0.44 for the prior year period. Returns
onh average assets and average equity were 0.68 percent and 7.92 percent, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to 0.52
percent and 5.38 percent for the prior year period.

Net I nterest Income

Net interest income was $7.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $6.5 million for the prior year. The 16 percent increase
in net interest income was due primarily to growth in average earning assets.

Net interest margin isinterest income earned on loans, securities, and other earning assets, less interest expense paid on deposits and
borrowings, expressed as a percentage of total average earning assets. The net interest margin for the year ended December 31, 2007 was 3.58
percent compared to 3.75 percent for the prior year. The average yield on earning assets for the current period was 7.64 percent compared to 7.31
percent for the year ended December 31, 2006, and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities was 4.62 percent for the current period compared
to 4.10 percent for the year ended December 31, 2006. The declinein interest rate spread from 3.21 percent to 3.02 percent was further impacted by a
decline in theratio of average interest-earning assetsto average interest-bearing liabilities, which decreased from 111.97 percent at December 31,
2006 to 110.80 percent at December 31, 2007.

Between December 13, 2005 and June 29, 2006, the Federal Reserve Board increased short-term interest rates five times for atotal of 125 basis
points. Interest rates stabilized over the last five months of 2006 and through the first eight months of 2007. While several factorsinfluence the
level of intermediate and long-term interest rates, increases in short-term interest rates generally result in a parallel shift in the entireyield curve
across al investment time horizons. However, the rate increases of the Federal Reserve Board did not impact intermediate and long-term ratesin
the typical manner, as from the second quarter of 2006 through August 2007 those rates continued to trade in very tight ranges to levels seen prior
to July 2004. Theresult was aflat to inverted yield curve across investment terms during most of the period between the second quarter of 2006
through August 2007. In other words, where historically interest rates for ten year terms were higher than overnight and other short-term
investments, the yield curve during that period of time had short-term interest rates at higher levels than ten-year rates.

Asthe economy weakened in the latter part of 2007 the Federal Reserve Board decreased short-term rates three times for atotal of 100 basis
points. During this period of time the yield curve began to take on an upward sloping shape, as short-term interest rates fell below interest rates for
longer maturity investment instruments.

Theincrease in short-term rates during the first half of 2006 initially helped the Company’s net interest margin as the mgjority of the
Company’sloan portfolio carries variable rate pricing, mostly based on the Prime lending rate. As short-term rates rose, variable rate |oans repriced
higher resulting in ahigher yield on interest-earning assets. However, astheflat or inverted yield curve persisted into 2006 and 2007 the
Company’s dependence on certificate of deposit funding began to negatively impact the net interest margin as the average cost of interest-bearing
liabilitiesincreased. Additionally, the quick succession of interest rate cuts by the Federal Reserve Board in the latter part of 2007 negatively
impacted the Company’s net interest margin as the average yield on interest-earning assets decreased as the rates on the variable rate |oan
portfolio declined. Additionally, in the latter part of 2007 certificate of deposit rates remained stubbornly high even as short-term market rates
declined, further negatively impacting the Company’s net interest margin. The Company expects to experience some net interest margin
compression in the current declining short-term interest rate environment. In general, in rising or falling interest rate environments, the Company
would expect moderate expansion or contraction of margin, respectively.

Total average interest-earning assets were $211.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, increasing by $37.7 million or 22% when
compared to an average of $173.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Increases in average balances by earning asset category were as
follows: average loansincreased by $42.9 million or 31% from $139.3 million in 2006 to $182.2 million in 2007, taxable investments, trading securities
and restricted equity securities decreased by $7.3 million or 25% from $29.0 million in 2006 to $21.7 million in 2007, and Federal Funds sold and
interest-bearing bank depositsincreased by $2.1 million or 38% from $5.5 million in 2006 to $7.6 million in 2007. Tota average interest-bearing
liabilitiesincreased by $35.6 million with interest-bearing deposit accountsincreasing $31.2 million or 23% and borrowings increasing $4.4 million
or 26%.
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Total interest income for 2007 increased by $3.5 million to $16.4 million compared $12.9 million for the prior year. The increase was the result
of $236,000 improvement due to the rate environment and $3.3 million from increased earning asset levels. Total interest expense grew by $2.5
million with $876,000 due to the rate environment and $1.6 million due to increased interest-bearing liabilities.

Average Balances and Average Rates Earned and Paid

The following table setsforth, for the periods indicated, information with regard to average balances of assets and liabilities, aswell asthe
total dollar amounts of interest income from interest-earning assets and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, resultant yields or costs, net

interest income, net interest spread, net interest margin and ratio of average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilities.

Nonaccrual loans have been included in determining average loans.

Table 1. Net Interest Income and Average Balances (dollarsin thousands)

I nter est-ear ning assets:
Federal funds sold and interest bearing bank
deposits
Taxable investment, trading securities and
restricted equity securities
Loans receivable
Total interest-earning assets
Non-interest-earning assets
Total assets

I nterest-bearing liabilities:
Deposit accounts
Borrowings
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Non-interest-bearing liabilities
Stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders
equity
Net interest income and interest rate spread
Net interest-earning assets and net interest margin

Ratio of interest-earning assetsto interest-bearing
lighilities

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate(1) Balance Interest Rate(1) Balance Interest Rate(1)
$ 7601 $ 389 512% $ 5471 $ 275 496% $ 2536 $ 091 3.54%
21,689 1,090 5.03 28,994 1,261 4.29 34,483 1,449 414
182,152 14,895 8.18 139,324 11,345 8.03 105,229 7,418 6.95
211,442 16,374 1.74 173,789 12,881 7.31 142,248 8,958 6.21
15,790 11,537 9,432
$227,232 $185,326 $151,680
$169,324 $ 7,578 4.48% $138,134 $ 5470 3.96% $103,856 $2,918 2.81%
21,516 1,235 5.74 17,083 887 5.12 22,455 784 3.44
190,840 8,813 4.62 155,217 6,357 4.10 126,311 3,702 293
19,464 14,208 10,615
16,928 15,901 14,754
$227,232 $185,326 $151,680
$ 7,561 3.12% $ 6,524 3.21% $5,256 3.28%
$ 20,602 367% $ 18572 3.75% $ 15,937 3.69%
110.80% 111.97% 112.62%

@ Average loan balances include nonaccrual loans.
@ Deferredloan feesareincluded in interest income.
®  Netinterest margin is net interest income divided by average interest earning assets.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table analyzes the dollar amount of changesin interest income and interest expense for major components of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The table distinguishes between (1) changes attributable to volume (changesin volume multiplied by the
prior period’srate), (2) changes attributable to rate (changes in rate multiplied by the prior period’s volume), and (3) net change (the sum of the
previous columns). The change attributabl e to both rate and volume (changes in rate multiplied by changesin volume) has been all ocated
proportionately to both the changes attributabl e to volume and the changes attributable to rate.

Table2. Rate/VVolume Variance Analysis

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2007 vs. 2006 December 31, 2006 vs. 2005
Increase (Decr ease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Total Rate Volume Total Rate Volume

(dollars in thousands)
Interest income:

Federal funds sold and interest-bearing bank deposits $14 $ 5 $109 ¢$ 184 $ 47 $ 137
Taxable investment and restricted equity securities (171) 174 (345) (188) 49 (237)
Loansreceivable 3,550 57 3,493 3,927 1,273 2,654
Total interest income 3,493 236 3,257 3,923 1,369 2,554
Interest expense:

Deposit accounts 2,108 775 1,333 2,552 1,413 1,139
Borrowings 348 101 247 103 317 (214)
Total interest expense 2,456 876 1,580 2,655 1,730 925
Net interest income increase (decrease) $1,037 $(640) $1677 $1,268 $ (361) $1,629

Provision for Loan Losses

The Company’s provision for loan losses for 2007 was $448,000 compared to $333,000 recorded in the prior year. Provisions for loan losses
are charged to income to bring the allowance for loan losses to alevel we deem appropriate. In evaluating the allowance for loan | osses, we
consider factors that include growth and composition of the loan portfolio, historical loan loss experience, individual loans that may have
estimated |osses, and other relevant factors. The primary reason for the increased provision from 2006 to 2007 was an increase in loans from 2006
to 2007. The increase in the provision was based on the Bank’s assessment of the strong credit quality of the Company’s current loan portfolio as
well asalow level of charge offsin the last three fiscal years. The allowance for loan losses to total loanswas 1.15 percent, 1.07 percent, and 1.00
percent as of December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Noninterest | ncome

The major components of noninterest income are shown in Table 3. Noninterest income for the Company consists of revenues generated
principally from service charges on deposit accounts, loan origination fees on sold mortgage loans, investment and insurance commissions, bank
owned life insurance income, and other service charges and fees.

Noninterest income totaled $2.6 million for 2007, up $495,000, or 24 percent, from $2.1 million for 2006. Service fees and charges, which
represent arelatively stable and predictable source of noninterest income, totaled $586,000 for the current year, a 35 percent increase over the
$434,000 of service fees and charges earned for 2006. M ortgage loan fee income was positively impacted by more productive mortgage originators
in 2007 compared to 2006, and totaled $428,000 for the current year, a 29 percent increase over the $332,000 of mortgage loan feeincome earned for
2006. The Bank’s Investment Services Group, which servicesits banking offices, and the Oak Ridge Wealth Management division, which was
formed in 2005 and operates independently of the Bank, comprise all of the investment and insurance commissions noninterest category.
Investment and insurance commissions totaled $925,000 for the current year, a 12 percent increase over the $827,000 earned in 2006, largely due to
increased revenue from both
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the Investment Services Group and the Oak Ridge Wealth Management business units. Income earned on bank owned life insurance totaled
$161,000 for the current year, a 3 percent increase over the $156,000 earned in 2006. The small increase from 2005 to 2006 was largely due to slightly
higher interest rates on the underlying insurance policiesin 2007 compared to 2006. Fee income from accounts receivable financing totaled
$342,000 for the current year, a 102 percent increase over the $169,000 earned in 2006. Thisincreaseislargely due to the addition of new customers
in 2007. Other service charges and fees benefited from the Bank’ sincreased number of product offerings and deposit accounts, and totaled
$252,000 for the current year, a 67 percent increase over the $151,000 earned in 2006. These increases were offset by a decrease in trading income of
$129,000. The decline in trading income was caused by two items, both of which are nonrecurring. First, the trading portfolio experienced a market
valueincrease during 2007 of $36,000. Second, the Company sold off substantially its entire trading portfolio near the end of the second quarter,
which resulted in a $165,000 loss. The company believes that the new investment portfolio that was purchased improved its asset liability position;
additionally, the new investment portfolio also had a higher yield than the sold investment portfolio.

Noninterest income totaled $2.1 million for 2006, up $800,000, or 62 percent, from $1.3 million for 2005. Service fees and charges, totaled
$434,000 for 2006, a 6 percent increase over the $408,000 of service fees and charges earned for 2005. Mortgage |oan fee income total ed $332,000 for
2006, a 12 percent increase over the $296,000 of mortgage |oan fee income earned for 2005. The Bank’s Investment Services Group, which services
its banking offices, werejoined in 2005 by two additional financial advisorswhich generally operate independently of the Company and do
business as Oak Ridge Wealth Management. Investment and insurance commissions totaled $827,000 for 2006, a 138 percent increase over the
$348,000 earned in 2005, largely due to the addition of Oak Ridge Wealth Management revenue in addition to increased revenue from its
Investment Services Group. Income earned on bank owned life insurance totaled $156,000 for 2006, a 3 percent decline over the $161,000 earned in
2005. The small increase from 2005 to 2006 was largely dueto slightly lower interest rates on the underlying insurance policiesin 2006 compared to
2005. Fee income from accounts receivabl e financing totaled $169,000 for 2006, a 1,107 percent increase over the $14,000 earned in 2005. This
increase islargely due to the addition of new customersin 2006. Other service charges and fees benefited from itsincreased number of product
offerings and deposit accounts, and totaled $151,000 in 2006, a 56 percent increase over the $97,000 earned in 2005.

Table 3. Sour ces of Noninterest |ncome

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousands)
Service charges on deposit accounts $ 586 $ 434 $ 408
Trading Income (129)
Net realized loss on sale of investment securities available for sale — — 1
Mortgage loan origination fees 427 332 296
Investment and insurance commissions 925 827 348
Income earned on bank owned life insurance 161 156 161
Fee income from accounts receivabl e financing 342 169 14
Other service charges and fees 252 151 97
Total noninterest income $2,564 $2,069 $1,325

Noninterest Expense

Non-interest expenses were $8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $6.8 million for the prior year period. The $1.3
million or 19 percent increase reflects the continuing efforts to expand the Company’ sinfrastructure and branch network. Of the $1.3 million, $1.2
million was in salaries and employee benefits and other expenses, which are the areas most, impacted by the branch network and infrastructure
improvements. The major components of noninterest expense are shown in Table 4.

Salaries and employee benefits for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $4.5 million reflecting an $800,000 increase when compared to the
$3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Increases in salaries and employee benefits were due to an increase in support positions to
service the Company’s continued growth. To alesser extent, the increase was due to increased banking office and support positions to service the
Bank’s new extended business hours that were put in place in October of 2006.
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Occupancy, equipment, data processing, professional and advertising, and stationary and supplies expenses were relatively unchanged from
2006 to 2007 as these areas were not significantly impacted by the Company’s continued growth, and were positively impacted by the an emphasis
on controlling such expenses.

Telecommunications expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $212,000 reflecting a $57,000 increase when compared to the
$155,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. A continuing investment in increased bandwidth to support the Company’s growth caused most of
the increase between the two years.

Other noninterest expenses for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $975,000 reflecting a $384,000 increase when compared to the $591,000
for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Non-interest expenses were $6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $5.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.
The $1.5 million or 28 percent increase was mostly due to new banking offices that were opened in August 2005 and June 2006, as well asan
increase in support positions to support the Company’s continued growth and to service the Company’s new extended business hours that were
implemented in October of 2006. The increasesin occupancy and eguipment expenses were due to the opening of two new officesin 2005 and
2006. Telecommunications expense increased from 2005 to 2006 due to the Company’sincreased investment in high speed bandwidth in 2006 as
well as the addition of two new banking officesin 2005 and 2006.

Table4. Sour ces of Noninterest Expense

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousands)
Salaries and employee benefits $4,491 $3,721 $2,635
Occupancy expense 493 494 409
Equipment expense 555 513 412
Data processing 309 271 244
Professional and advertising 907 885 796
Foreclosed assets, net — — 3
Stationary and supplies 199 173 150
Telecommunications 212 155 98
Other expense 975 591 532
Total noninterest expense $8,141 $6,803 $5,279

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is based on amounts reported in the statements of income (after adjustments for non-taxable income and non-deductible
expenses) and consists of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes on temporary differencesin the recognition of income and expense for tax and
financial statement purposes. The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future Federal and state income tax consegquences of those
differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.

Income tax expense was $531,000 for 2007 and $198,000 for 2006, respectively. There was no income tax expense recorded for 2005, as the
Company’s deferred tax asset was sufficient to offset itsincome tax expense. Net deferred income tax benefits of approximately $576,000 and
$788,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, wereincluded in other assets. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, $957,000 and $735,000,
respectively, of the total deferred tax asset are applicable to the allowance for |oan loss and accrued compensation, respectively.

The Company’s deferred income tax benefits and liabilities are the result of temporary differencesin provisions for loan losses, depreciation,
and investment security discount accretion.
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Analysisof Financial Condition

Average earning assetsincreased to $211.4 million in 2007, or 22 percent, from $173.8 million in 2006. Earning assets represented 93.1 percent
of total assets during the year ended December 31, 2007, and 93.8 percent during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. The mix of average
earning assets changed from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007, with loans growing from 75.2 percent of total assetsin 2006 to 80.3 percent
in 2007, and investment securities declining from 15.6 percent of total assetsin 2006 to 9.5 percent in 2007. The shift in earning assets from
investments to loans is a conscious strategy by management to try to protect the Company’s net interest margin as loans generally have higher
interest rates than investment securities. Management expects this trend to continue in 2008, but at some point the Company may have to limit the
shift from investment securitiesto loansto maintain liquidity at an acceptable level.

Table5. Average Asset Mix

For the Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average
Balance Per cent Balance Per cent Balance Per cent
(dollars in thousands)
Earning assets:
Loans $182,152 80.3% $139,324 75.2% $105,229 69.4%
Investment securities 21,689 95 28,994 15.6 34,483 22.7
Federal funds sold and interest-bearing balances 7,601 33 5,471 3.0 2,536 1.7
Total earning assets 211,442 93.1 173,789 93.8 142,248 93.8
Nonear ning assets:
Cash and due from banks 4776 21 3,245 1.8 1,353 0.9
Property and equipment 6,851 30 4,932 2.7 4,186 2.7
Other assets 4,163 1.8 3,180 1.7 3,893 2.6
Total nonearning assets 15,790 6.9 11,357 6.2 9,432 6.2
Total assets $227,232 100.0% $185,146 100.0% $151,680 100.0%

Loans Receivable

The Company makes both commercial and consumer |oans to borrowersin all neighborhoods within its market areas, including low- and
moderate-income areas. The Company emphasi zes commercial 1oansto small and medium sized businesses, real estate |oans, and consumer loans.

Tables 6 and 7 set forth, at the datesindicated, the Company’s loan portfolio composition by type of loan. The mgjority of loans are secured
by real estate, with the biggest concentrations in that category being residential, 1-4 families, and construction and development. Commercial and
industrial loans have steadily grown, both in dollars and as a percent of total 1oans. In 2007, commercial and industrial |oans represented the
largest category of total loans.
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Table 6. Loan Portfolio Summary

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(dollars in thousands)
Construction and devel opment $ 55588 $ 33,382 $ 26,747 $17,241 $11,450
Secured by farmland 2,159 2,214 2,281 335 380
Residential, 1-4 families 52,187 45,515 41,833 38,966 29,404
Residential, 5 or more families 3,379 1,501 1,496 — 945
Nonfarm, nonresidential 12,672 21,198 7,903 8,935 4,164
Total real estate 125,985 103,810 80,260 65,477 46,343
Commercial and industrial 83,085 51,923 39,236 18,993 13,988
Consumer 3,899 3,851 3,353 3,341 3,301
Total $212,969 $159,584 $122,849 $87,811 $63,632
Table 7. Loan Portfolio Summary, asa percent of total loans
At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Construction and devel opment 26.1% 209% 218% 19.6% 18.0%
Secured by farmland 10 14 19 04 0.6
Residential, 1-4 families 24.5 28.6 34.1 444 46.2
Residential, 5 or more families 16 0.9 1.2 — 15
Nonfarm, nonresidential 6.0 13.3 6.4 10.2 6.5
Total real estate 59.2 65.1 65.4 74.6 72.8
Commercial and industrial 39.0 325 319 21.6 22.0
Consumer 18 24 2.7 3.8 5.2
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Table 8 presents the maturity/repricing distribution of loans as of December 31, 2007.
Table 8. Loan Maturity/Repricing Distribution
Commercial  Construction
and and Total
Industrial Development Others Amount %
(dollars in thousands)

Three months or less $ 23627 $ 49276 $19,600 $ 92503 43.44%
Over 3 months to 12 months 2,827 3,244 5,563 11,634 5.46
Over 1 year to 5 years 47,184 2,438 23,660 73,282 3441
Over 5years 9,447 631 25,472 35550 16.69
Total loans $ 83,08 $ 55589 $74,295 $212,969 100.00%
Asset Quality

Maintaining ahigh level of asset quality isaprimary goal in the Bank’slending function, and we employ aformal internal loan review
process to ensure adherence to the lending policies approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors. A systematic eval uation process fundamentally
drives the function of determining the allowance for loan losses. This ongoing process serves as the basis for determining, on amonthly basis, the

allowance for loan losses and any resulting provision to be charged against earnings. Consideration i

sgiven to the value and adequacy of

collateral, economic conditionsin its market area and other factors. For |oans determined to be impaired, the allowanceis based on discounted
cash flows using the loan’sinitial effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for certain collateral dependent loans. Thisevaluationis

inherently subjective, asit requires material estimates,
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including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change.
The allowance for loan losses represents management’ s estimate of the appropriate level of reserve to provide for probable losses inherent in the

loan portfolio.

The Bank’s policy regarding past due loans normally requires a prompt charge-off to the allowance for loan losses following timely collection
efforts and athorough review. Further efforts are then pursued through various means available. Loans carried in anonaccrual status are generally
collateralized and the possibility of future lossesis considered in the determination of the allowance for 1oan losses.

Nonperforming Assets

Table 9 setsforth information with respect to nonaccrual loans, restructured loans, total nonperforming loans (nonaccrual 1oans plus

restructured loans), and total nonperforming assets.

Table 9. Nonperforming Assets

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans $ 10 $ 353 $ 303 $ 676 $ 130
Restructured |oans — — — — —
Total nonperforming loans 10 353 303 676 130
Real estate owned — — — 302 —
Total nonperforming assets $ 10 $ 353 $ 303 $ 978 $ 130
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more $ 365 $ — $ — $ 5 $ —
Allowance for loan loss 2,120 1,704 1,410 970 635
Nonperforming assets to period end loans 0.005% 0.22% 0.25% 0.77% 0.20%
Allowance for loan losses to period end loans 1.00% 1.07% 1.15% 1.10% 1.00%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 21,200% 482.72% 465.35% 143.49% 488.46%
Nonperforming loansto total assets 0.004% 0.17% 0.18% 0.50% 0.13%

Management does not expect any significant loss of principal related to the nonperforming loans in excess of the provision the Company has

reserved through its allowance model for these loans.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, including the recognition of interest
income on itsloan portfolio, unlessaloan is placed on a nonaccrual basis. Loans are placed on anonaccrual basis when they become 90 days past
due or whenever management believes that collection has become doubtful. Amounts received on nonaccrual loans generally are applied first to
principal and then to interest only after all principal has been collected. Restructured loans are those for which concessions, including the
reduction of interest rates below arate otherwise available to that borrower or the deferral of interest or principal, have been granted due to the
borrower’s weakened financial condition. Interest on restructured loansis accrued at the restructured rates when it is anticipated that no loss of
original principal will occur. Loans are charged off when the collection of principal and interest has become doubtful and the loans no longer can
be considered sound collectible assets (or, in the case of unsecured loans, when they become 90 days past due).
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Allowancefor Loan Losses

The allowance for loan lossesis maintained at alevel considered adequate by management to provide for anticipated loan losses based on

management’ s assessment of various factors affecting the loan portfolio, including areview of problem loans, business conditions and loss

experience and an overall evaluation of the quality of the underlying collateral. The allowance isincreased by provisions charged to operations

and reduced by loans charged off, net of recoveries.

While management believesthat it uses the best information available to determine the allowance for loan | osses, unforeseen market
conditions could result in adjustments to the allowance for loan losses, and net income could be significantly affected, if circumstances differ
substantially from the assumptions used in making the final determination. In addition, various regul atory agencies may require the Company to
make adjustments to the allowance for |oan losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination.
The following table shows the allocation of the Company’s allowance for loan losses at the dates indicated. The allocation is based on an
evaluation of defined loan problems, historical ratios of loan losses and other factors that may affect future loan losses in the categories of loans

shown.

Table 10 presents an all ocation of the allowance for loan loss along with outstanding loans in each category to total oans outstanding for

each period indicated:

Table 10. Allocation of Allowancefor Loan L oss

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Amount % (1) Amount % (1) Amount % (1) Amount % (1) Amount % (1)
(dollars in thousands)

1-4 residential first liens $ 374 1540 $ 333 1893 $ 43 2340 $ 48 3090 $ 29 3060
Construction and devel opment 497 26.10 290 20.92 400 21.80 257 19.60 175 18.00
1-4 family junior liens 181 9.10 308 9.30 50 10.70 28 1250 24 15.60
All other real estate secured 168 8.60 221 1590 87 950 76 11.60 41 860
Total real estate loans 1220 5920 1,152 65.05 580 65.40 409 74.60 269 72.80
Commercia and industrial 846 39.00 459 3254 656 31.90 348 21.60 258 22.00
Consumer 54 180 93 241 66 270 62 3.80 60 5.20
Unallocated — — — — 108 — 151 — 48 —
Total $2,120 100.00 $1,704 100.00 $1,410 100.00 $ 970 100.00 $ 635 100.00

(1) Representstotal of all outstanding loansin each category as a percent of total |oans outstanding.

Management realizes that general economic trends greatly affect loan losses and no assurances can be made about future losses.
Management, however, does consider the allowance for loan losses to be adequate at December 31, 2007.
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Table 11 sets forth information regarding changesin the Company’s allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated.

Table11. Changesin the Allowance for L oan L osses

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,704 $ 1,410 $ 970 $ 635 $ 443
Charge-offs:
Real estate - mortgage — (15) — (98) —
Home equity lines of credit — — — — —
Commercia and industrial (129 (10) (37) — (30)
Loansto individuals (35) (14) (34 (9) (41)
Total charge-offs (54) (39) (72) (207) (72)
Recoveries:
Real estate - mortgage — — — — —
Home equity lines of credit — — — — —
Commercia and industrial — — 1 — —
Loansto individuals 22 — 2 1 1
Total recoveries 22 — 3 1 1
Net (charge-offs) recoveries (32 (39) (68) (106) (70)
Provision for loan | osses charged to operations 448 333 508 441 262
Balance at end of period $ 2120 $ 1,704 $ 1,410 $ 970 $ 635
Total loans outstanding at year-end $212,969 $159,584 $122,849 $87,811 $63,632
Average net loans outstanding for the year $182,152 $139,324 $105,229 $74,415 $50,511
Ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.02% 0.03% 0.06% 0.14% 0.13%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to loans outstanding at period-end 1.00% 1.07% 1.15% 1.11% 1.00%

I nvestments

The Company’s portfolios of investment securities, which are classified as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity, consist of

government sponsored enterprise and mortgage-backed securities. Securitiesto be held for indefinite periods of time and not intended to be held-

to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale and carried at fair value with any unrealized gains or losses reflected as an adjustment to

shareholders’ equity. Securities held for indefinite periods of time include securities that management intends to use as part of its asset/liability
management strategy and that may be sold in response to changesin interest rates and/or significant prepayment risks. Securities held for definite

periods of time and intended to be held to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity.
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Table 12. Investment Securities

2007

Available-for-sale
Government-sponsored enterprise securities
M ortgage-backed securities

Total securities available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
M ortgage-backed securities
Total securities held-to-maturity

2006

Available-for-sale
Government-sponsored enterprise securities
M ortgage-backed securities

Total securities available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
M ortgage-backed securities
Total securities held-to-maturity

2005

Available-for-sale
Government-sponsored enterprise securities
Corporate bonds

Total securities available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
M ortgage-backed securities
Total securities held-to-maturity

32

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value
(dollars in thousands)
$ 3,946 $ 68 = $ 4,014
12,987 352 — 13,339
$ 16,933 $ 420 $17,353
$ — $ — — $ —
$ — $ — — $ —
$ 589 $ — 77 $5782
18,112 2 493 17,621
$ 23971 $ 2 570 $23,403
$ 1,613 $ 4 85 $ 1,532
$ 1,613 $ 4 85 $ 1532
$ 6,874 $ 1 102 $ 6,773
21,592 4 561 21,035
$ 28,466 $ 5 663 $27,808
$ 1,753 $ 4 79 $ 1,678
$ 1,753 $ 4 79 $ 1,678
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Table 13 provides the amortized costs, carrying values, intervals of maturities or re-pricings, and weighted average yields of the Company’s
investment portfolio at December 31, 2007.

Table 13. Investment Securities

Available for Sale Held to Maturity
Weighted Weighted
Amortized Fair Average Amortized Fair Average
Cost Value Yield Cost Value Yield

(dollars in thousands)
Government sponsored enterprise securities

Duein oneyear or less $ 2965 $ 2981 525% $ — $— — %
Due after one year through five years 980 1,033 5.39% — — —
Due after five years through ten years — — 0.00% — — —
$ 3945 $ 4,014 528% $ — $— =
M ortgage-backed securities
Duein one year or less $ — $ — 000% $ — $— =
Due after one year through five years — — 0.00% — — —
Due after five years through ten years 3,186 3,256 5.62% — — —
Due after ten years 9,802 10,083 5.75% — — — %
$12,988  $13,339 571% $ — $— — %

For purposes of the maturity table, mortgage-backed securities, which are not due at a single maturity date, have been allocated over
maturity groupings based on the weighted-average contractual maturities of underlying collateral. The mortgage-backed securities may mature
earlier than their weighted-average contractual maturities because of principal prepayments.

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS’) No. 159 as of January 1, 2007. Upon adoption of SFAS
No. 159, the Company selected the fair value option for its entire available-for-sale and hel d-to-maturity securities portfolio consisting of
government sponsored enterprise and mortgage-backed securities with afair market value of January 1, 2007 of $25.0 million. Listed below are the
financial details of the early adoption of SFAS No. 159:

. Asof January 1, 2007, the Company €elected the fair value option for its entire securities portfolio which had a fair market value of $25.0
million as of that date;

. Asaresult of the above election, the Company’s entire securities portfolio was reclassified from avail able-for-sale and hel d-to-maturity
categoriesto the trading category;

. Theinitial adoption of SFAS No. 159 had aminimal negative impact on total stockholders’ equity of $48,000 due to the reclassification of the
Company’s held-to-maturity category to the trading category;

. The cumulative-effect adjustment of $393,000, representing the unrealized loss on the Company’ s entire securities portfolio (net of tax), was
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive |oss as areduction of Retained Earnings, on January 1, 2007; and

. Net income for 2007 includes a pre-tax gain of $36,000, representing the changein fair value from January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007 of the
Company’strading securities, and includes a $165,000 pre-tax |oss on the sale of substantially all of the Company’strading securitiesin the
second quarter of 2007.

The Company believesits early adoption of the accounting standard will have a positive impact on its ability to manage the interest rate risk
on its balance sheet by lengthening the duration of its portfolio, and will simplify the accounting for itsinvestment portfolio by reducing the
number of purchased securities from what it presently owns. Adoption of the accounting standard will potentially benefit interest income, net
income and basic and diluted earnings per share during the remainder of 2007 and future periods.

At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, there were no securities of any issuer (other than certain mortgage-backed issuers) that
exceeded 10 percent of the Company’s stockholders’ equity.
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Deposits
Table 14 sets forth the amounts and maturities of the Company’s certificates of deposit.

Table 14. Certificates of Deposit

At December 31, 2007

Over 3
3 to
Months 6 Over 6to 12 Over 12
or Less Months Months Months Total

(dollars in thousands)
Certificates of deposit:

Less than $100,000 $14,152 $23161 $ 34,181 $15410 $ 86,904
$100,000 or more 17,655 7,455 15,823 4,729 45,662
Total $31,807 $30,616 $ 50,004 $20,139 $132,566

Table 15 setsforth for the periods indicated the average bal ances outstanding and average interest rates for each major category of deposits.

Table 15. Average Deposit Balances and Rates

For the Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollarsin thousaTds)

I nterest-bearing deposits:

Demand accounts $ 46529 376% $ 20,184 298% $ 15582 1.34%
Savings and money market 20,676 3.69 35,878 3.45 24183 234
Time deposits 102,120 4.96 82,072 4.42 64,091 3.34
Total interest-bearing deposits 169,325 4.48 138,134 3.96 103,856 2.81
Non-interest-bearing deposits 15,284 — 13,187 — 9,652 —
Total deposits $184,609 4.11% $151,321 3.61% $113,508 257%

Short-Term Debt

The Company may purchase federal funds through unsecured federal funds guidance lines totaling $3.5 million at December 31, 2007. These
lines are intended for short-term borrowings and are subject to restrictions limiting the frequency and terms of advances. The Company had no
outstanding balances under these lines of credit at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Also included in short-term borrowings are certain advances with the FHLB. These are generally referred to asdaily rate creditsthat have a
maturity less than one year. The Company had no outstanding balances under this type of borrowing at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Average short-term debt was $1.08 million, $11.6 million, and $8.3 million during 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The related interest
expense was $64,000, $594,000, and $538,000, respectively.

Long-Term Debt
Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Asamember of the FHLB, the Bank has the ability to borrow up to 10 percent of total assetsin the form of FHLB advances. At December 31,
2007 advances of $16 million that were classified as |ong-term debt were outstanding, which were the same two FHL B advances classified as|ong-
term debt as of December 31, 2006. The average amount outstanding during 2007 and 2006 was $16 million and $5.4 million, respectively.
Approximately $33 million in first and second lien 1-4 family residential loans were pledged as collateral for short- and long-term FHLB advances at
December 31, 2007.
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Junior Subordinated Debentures

In 2007, the Company issued $8,248,000 of junior subordinated debentures to Oak Ridge Statutory Trust | (the “ Trust”) in exchange for the
proceeds of trust preferred securitiesissued by the Trust. The junior subordinated debentures are included in long-term debt and the Company’s
equity interest in the Trust isincluded in other assets.

The junior subordinated debentures pay interest quarterly at an annual rate, reset quarterly, equal to LIBOR plus 1.60%. The debentures are
redeemable on June 17, 2012 or afterwards, in whole or in part, on any December 17, March 17, June 17 or September 17. Redemption is mandatory
at June 17, 2037. The Bank guarantees the trust-preferred securities through the combined operations of the junior subordinated debentures and
other related documents. The Bank’s obligations under the guarantee are unsecured and subordinate to the senior and subordinated indebtedness
of the Bank.

Thetrust preferred securities presently qualify as Tier 1 regulatory capital and are reported in Federal Reserve regulatory reportsas a
minority consolidated interest in a consolidated subsidiary. The junior subordinated debentures do not qualify as Tier 1 regulatory capital. On
March 1, 2005, the Federal Reserve Board issued afinal rule stating that trust preferred securities will continueto beincluded in Tier 1 capital,
subject to stricter quantitative and qualitative standards. For bank holding companies, trust preferred securities will continueto beincludedin Tier
1 capital up to 25% of core capital elements (including trust preferred securities) net of goodwill less any associate deferred tax liability.

The table below sets forth the outstanding long-term debt for the Company as of December 31, 2007:

Current

Maturity Date Balance Rate Type of Debt, Rate Repricing Frequency

7/28/08 $ 9,000,000 5.01% FHLB Advances, Quarterly, next reprice date 1/28/2008

5/28/08 7,000,000 5.01% FHLB Advances, Quarterly, next reprice date 2/28/2008

6/17/2037 8,248,000 6.59% Junior Subordinated Debentures, Quarterly, next reprice date 3/16/2008

$16,000,000

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s sources of funds are customer deposits, cash and demand balances due from other banks, interest-earning depositsin other
banks, and investment securities available-for-sale. These funds, together with loan repayments, are used to make loans and to fund continuing
operations. In addition, at December 31, 2007, the Company had credit available with the FHLB of approximately $6.8 million and additional
availability under credit lines with afinancial institution of $3.5million. Tota deposits were $218.5 million and $172.3 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively. The Company has relied on time deposits and borrowed funds to fund loan demand that has exceeded the rate of growth in
core deposits. Certificates of deposit are the only deposit accounts that have stated maturity dates, and those deposits are generally considered to
berate sensitive. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, time deposits represented 61 percent and 55 percent, respectively, of total deposits. Certificates
of deposit of $100,000 or more represented 21 percent and 20 percent of total deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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The Company has brokered certificates of deposit that, as of December 31, 2007, amounted to approximately $30.4 million or 14 percent of
total deposits and 23 percent of total certificates of deposit. The Company has certificates of deposit that are accepted on the Internet through
Qwick-Rate's CD Clearinghouse (“ Qwick-Rate”). On December 31, 2007, those I nternet deposits amounted to approximately $15.1 million or 7
percent of total depositsand 11 percent of total certificates of deposit. With the exception of these Internet deposits, management believes most of
the Company’s other time deposits are relationship-oriented and, whileit will be necessary to pay competitive rates to retain those deposits at their
maturities, there are other subjective factors that will determine their continued retention. Based upon prior experience, management anticipates
that a substantial portion of outstanding certificates of deposit will renew upon maturity.

Management anticipates that the Company will rely primarily upon customer deposits, Qwick-Rate deposits, borrowed funds, investment
repayments, loan repayments and current earnings to provide liquidity, and will use funds thus generated to make loans and to purchase
securities, primarily securitiesissued by the federal government and its agencies and mortgage-backed securities. As of December 31, 2007, liquid
assets (cash and due from banks, interest-earning bank deposits, federal funds sold, time deposits in other banks and investment securities
available-for-sale) were approximately $36 million, which represented 14 percent of total assets and 16 percent of total deposits. At December 31,
2007, outstanding commitments to extend credit were $30 million and available line of credit balances totaled $10.3 million. Management believes
that the combined aggregate liquidity position of the Company is sufficient to meet the funding requirements of loan demand and deposit
meaturities and withdrawalsin the near term.

The Bank is subject to minimum capital requirements. Asthe following table indicates, at December 31, 2007, all capital ratios place the Bank
in excess of the minimum necessary to be considered “well-capitalized” under bank regulatory guidelines.

At December 31, 2007

Actual Minimum Well-Capitalized

Ratio Requirement Requirement
Total risk-based capital ratio "10.4% 8.0% 10.0%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 9.4% 4.0% 6.0%
Leverageratio 8.5% 4.0% 5.0%

Under federal capital regulations, the Company must satisfy certain minimum leverage ratio requirements and risk-based capital requirements.
At December 31, 2007, the Company’s equity to asset ratio was 6.7 percent.

Asset/Liability Management

The Company’srisk of loss arising from adverse changesin the fair value of financial instruments, or market risk, is composed primarily of
interest rate risk. The primary objective of the Company’s asset/liability management activitiesis to maximize net interest income while maintaining
acceptable levels of interest rate risk. The Company’s Asset/Liability Committee (“ ALCO”) isresponsible for establishing policiesto limit exposure
tointerest rate risk, and to ensure procedures are established to monitor compliance with those policies. The guidelines established by ALCO are
reviewed and approved by the Board.

Aninterest rate sensitive asset or liability is one that, within a defined time period, either matures or experiences an interest rate changein
line with general market interest rates. Historically, the most common method of estimating interest rate risk was to measure the maturity and
repricing relationships between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at specific pointsintime (“ GAP”), typically one year. Under
this method, abank is considered liability sensitive when the amount of itsinterest-bearing liabilities exceeds the amount of itsinterest-earning
assets within the one-year horizon. However, assets and liabilities with similar repricing characteristics may not reprice at the same time or to the
same degree. As aresult, the Company’s GAP does not necessarily predict the impact of changesin general levels of interest rates on net interest
income.
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Table 16 illustrates the GAP position of the Company as of December 31, 2007.

Table 16. GAP Position

Termsto repricing at December 31, 2007
With in 3 4t012 1Year to Over 5
Months Months 5Years Years Total

(dollars in thousands)

I nterest-earning assets:
Loansreceivable

Adjustable rate $ 93,912 $ 1,009 $ 621 $ — $ 95,542
Fixed rate 12,885 30,090 62,586 11,866 117,427
Investment securities 1,415 4341 6,496 5,521 17,773
Federal funds sold 8,493 — — — 8,493
Interest-earning depositsin other banks 2,012 990 981 — 3,983
Stock in FHLB of Atlanta 1,093 — — — 1,093
Total interest-earning assets $119,811 $ 36,430 $70,684 $ 17,387 $244,311
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
NOW $ 1612 $ 4,663 $13,096 $ 26,398 $ 45,769
Money market and savings 973 2,920 8,206 13,310 25,410
Time 32,368 80,002 20,196 — 132,566
Total deposits 34,953 87,585 41,498 39,708 203,745
Junior subordinated debentures 8,248 — — — 8,248
Other borrowings 16,000 — — — 16,000
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 59,201 $ 87,585 $41,498 $ 39,708 $227,993
Interest sensitivity gap per period $ 60,610 $(51,155) $29,186 $(22,321) $ 16,318
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap $ 60,610 $ 9,455 $38,641 $ 16,318 $ 16,318
Cumulative gap as a percentage of total interest-earning assets 24.81% 3.87% 15.82% 6.68% 6.68%
Cumulative interest-earning assets as a percentage of cumulative interest-
bearing liabilities 202.38% 106.44% 120.52% 107.16% 107.16%

Management believes that the simulation of net interest incomein different interest rate environments provides a more meaningful measure
of interest rate risk. Income simulation analysis captures not only the potential of all assets and liabilities to mature or reprice, but also the
probability that they will do so. Income simulation also attends to the relative interest rate sensitivities of theseitems, and projects their behavior
over an extended period of time. Finally, income simulation permits management to assess the probabl e effects on the balance sheet not only of
changesininterest rates, but also of proposed strategies for responding to them.

The Company’sincome simulation model was developed by Farin & Associates, Inc., afinancial-services consulting firm that provides
asset/liability management solutions, product pricing solutions and other products and servicesto banks, thrifts, and credit unions nationwide.
The model analyzesinterest rate sensitivity by projecting net interest income and net income over the next 12 months in aflat rate scenario versus
net interest income and net income in alternative interest rate scenarios. Management continually reviews and refinesitsinterest rate risk
management processin response to the changing economic climate.

The Company’s ALCO policy has established that interest income sensitivity will be considered acceptableif net interest income does not
decline from the flat rate scenario more than 7.5 percent, 15 percent, and 20 percent in the plus and minus 100, 200 and 300 basis point scenarios,
respectively. These interest rate scenarios assume that rates increase immediately and permanently. At December 31, 2007, the Company’ sincome
simulation model projectsthat net interest income would increase 1.72 percent, 3.37 percent and 4.68 percent in the plus 100, 200 and 300 basis
point change scenarios, respectively, and would decrease 0.86 percent, 2.06 percent and 3.38 percent in the minus 100, 200 and 300 basis point
change scenarios, respectively. All of these forecasts are within an acceptable level of interest rate risk per the policies established by AL CO.
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In the event the model indicates an unacceptable level of risk, management could undertake a number of actions that would reduce thisrisk,
including the sale of a portion of the Company’s avail able-for-sale investment portfolio, the use of risk management strategies such asinterest rate
swaps and caps, or the extension of the maturities of its short-term borrowings.

Critical Accounting Palicies

This discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operationsis based on the Company’s Financial Statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of the Company’ s financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, management eval uates its estimates, which are based upon historical
experience and on other assumptions that management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to its audited Financial Statements. Management considers the
following accounting policiesto be most critical in their potential effect on the Company’sfinancial position or results of operations:

I nterest Income Recognition

L oans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are reported at their
outstanding principa amount adjusted for any charge-offs and the allowance for |oan losses. L oan origination fees and certain direct origination
costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the yield of the related |oan. Discounts and premiums on any purchased residential real
estate |oans are amortized to income using the interest method over the remaining period to contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated
prepayments. Discounts and premiums on any purchased consumer loans are recognized over the expected lives of the loans using methods that
approximate the interest method.

Interest is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding. The accrual of interest on impaired loansis
discontinued when, in management’ s opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due. When interest accrual is
discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received.
When facts and circumstances indicate the borrower has regained the ability to meet the required payments, the loan is returned to accrual status.
Past due status of loansis determined based on contractual terms.

Allowancefor Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to
earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of aloan balanceis confirmed.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is eval uated on aregular basis by management and is based upon management’s periodic review of the
collectibility of the loansin light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the
borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation isinherently
subjective, asit requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probabl e that the Company will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest
payments when due. L oans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified asimpaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on aloan by |oan basis for commercial
and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s
obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if theloanis collateral dependent.
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Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not
separately identify individual consumer and residential 1oans for impairment disclosures.

Regulatory Matters

Management is not aware of any known trends, events, uncertainties or current recommendations by regulatory authorities that will have, or
that are reasonably likely to have, amaterial effect on the Company’sliquidity, capital resources, or other operations.

I mpact of I nflation and Changing Prices

A commercial bank has an asset and liability structure that is distinctly different from that of a company with substantial investmentsin plant
and inventory because the major portion of its assets are monetary in nature. As aresult, abank’s performance may be significantly influenced by
changesin interest rates. Although the banking industry is more affected by changesin interest rates than by inflation in the prices of goods and
services, inflation is afactor that may influence interest rates. However, the frequency and magnitude of interest rate fluctuations do not
necessarily coincide with changesin the general inflation rate. Inflation does affect operating expensesin that personnel expenses and the cost of
supplies and outside services tend to increase more during periods of high inflation. Therefore, the Company can best counter inflation over the
long term by managing net interest income and controlling net increases in noninterest income and expense.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Please refer to Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, of the Bank’s
Financial Statementsfor asummary of recent authoritative pronouncements that could impact its accounting, reporting, and/or disclosure of
financial information.
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The following table contains selected financial datafor the Company as of and for the periods shown:

Selected Financial Data (dollarsin thousands, except shareand per share data)

Income statement data:

Net interest income
Provision for loan |osses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Per sharedata and sharesoutstanding: ©

Basic net income per share®

Diluted net income per share®
Book value at period end

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted
Shares outstanding at period end

Balance sheet data:

Total assets

Loan receivable
Allowance for loan losses
Other interest-earning assets
Total deposits

Borrowings

Stockholders’ equity

Selected performanceratios:

Return on average assets
Return on average stockholders’ equity

Net interest margin
Net interest spread ©
Efficiency ratio ¥

Asset quality ratios (at period end):

Nonperforming loans® to period-end loans
Allowance for loan losses to period-end loans
Allowance for loan losses to total assets

Net loan charge-offsto average |oans outstanding

Capital and liquidity ratios:

1)
)
©)
4)
©)
(6)

Total capital ratio
Tier 1 capital ratio
Leverage capital ratio
Equity to assetsratio

Computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during each period.
Net interest marginis net interest income divided by average interest earning assets.

At or for the year ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
$ 7561 $ 6524 $ 525
448 333 508
2,564 2,069 1,325
8,141 6,803 5,279
531 198 —
1,005 1,259 794
$ 0.56 $ 0.70 $ 0.44
0.55 0.68 0.44
9.87 9.19 8.46
1,790,368 1,789,915 1,789,499
1,821,626 1,860,318 1,803,743
1,791,474 1,790,174 1,789,499
$ 262,208 $ 207,136 $ 172,504
212,821 159,427 122,628
2,120 1,704 1,410
31,724 33,729 39,611
218,516 172,285 140,169
24,248 17,500 16,200
17,684 16,453 15,143
0.44% 0.68% 0.52%
5.94% 7.92% 5.38%
3.58% 3.75% 3.69%
3.02% 3.21% 3.28%
80.40% 79.17% 80.22%
0.18% 0.22% 0.25%
1.00% 1.07% 1.15%
0.81% 0.82% 0.82%
0.02% 0.03% 0.06%
10.4% 11.1% 12.8%
9.46% 10.1% 11.8%
8.5% 8.5% 9.2%
6.7% 7.9% 8.8%

Net interest spread is the difference between the average yield on interest earning assets and the average cost of interest bearing liabilities.
Efficiency ratio is noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income.
Nonperforming loans consist of non-accruing loans and accruing loans greater than 90 days past due.

Share and per share data have been adjusted to reflect a five-for-four stock split effected in the form of a25% dividend in 2004.
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The Consolidated Financial Statements contain forward-looking statements. These Statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties
that could cause actual resultsto differ materially from those anticipated in the forwar d-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a
difference include, but are not limited to, changesin the interest rate environment, management’s business strategy, national, regional and
local market conditions and legislative and regulatory conditions.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Oak Ridge Financial Services, Inc.
Oak Ridge, North Carolina

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Oak Ridge Financial Services, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three yearsin the period ended December 31, 2007. Our
audits also included the notes to the consolidated financial statements of Oak Ridge Financial Services, Inc. These financial statements notes are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our auditsin accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonabl e basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Oak Ridge
Financial Services, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three yearsin the
period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statements, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken asawhole, presentsfairly in all material respectsthe
information set forth therein.

We were hot engaged to examine management’ s assertion about the effectiveness of Oak Ridge Financial Services, Inc. internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 included in the accompanying Item 8a, Controls and Procedures and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion thereon.

Galax, Virginia
March 17, 2008
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2007 and 2006
(Dollarsin thousands — except per share data)

Assets

Cash and due from banks
I nterest-bearing deposits with banks
Total cash and cash equivalents
Federal funds sold
Trading assets
Securities available-for-sale
Securities held-to-maturity (fair values of $1,532 in 2006)
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock, at cost
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $2,120 in 2007 and $1,704 in 2006
Property and equipment, net
Accrued interest receivable
Bank owned lifeinsurance
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilitiesand Stockholders Equity
Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Total deposits

Short-term debt
L ong-term debt
Junior subordinated notes related to trust preferred securities
Accrued interest payable
Other liahilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, no par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; no sharesissued and outstanding
Common stock, no par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 1,791,474 issued and outstanding in 2007
Common stock, $3 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; 1,790,174 issued and outstanding in 2006
Surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (l0ss)

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

2007 2006
$ 6125 $ 4332
3,963 782
10108 5114
8493 6,798
802 —
17353 23403
— 1,613
1,093 1,133
210,701 157,723
6,755 5022
1,219 962
4269 4107
1,415 1,261
$262,208 $207,136
$ 14771 $ 13745
203,745 158,540
218516 172,285
— 1,500
16000 16,000
8,248 —
553 447
1,207 451
244524 190,683
15,831 —
— 5,370
— 10,450
1,590 978
263 (345)
17684 16453
$262,208 $207,136
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(Dollarsin thousands except per share data)

I nterest and dividend income
Loans and fees on loans
Federal funds sold
Interest on depositsin banks
Federal Home L oan Bank stock dividends
Taxable investment securities
Total interest and dividend income

I nterest expense
Deposits
Federal funds purchased
Short-term and long-term debt
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Trading loss
Net realized gain on sale of investment securities available-for-sale
Mortgage loan origination fees
Investment and insurance commissions
Fee income from accounts receivabl e financing
Income earned on bank owned life insurance
Other service charges and fees
Total noninterest income

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense
Equipment expense
Dataand item processing
Professional and advertising
Foreclosed assets, net
Stationary and supplies
Telecommunications expense
Other expense
Total noninterest expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

2007 2006 2005
$ 1485  $ 11345 $ 7418
287 230 86
102 45 5
69 64 69
1,021 1,197 1,380
16,374 12,881 8,958
7,578 5,470 2,918
7 3 13
1,228 884 raél
8,813 6,357 3,702
7,561 6,524 5,256
448 333 508
7,113 6,191 4,748
586 434 408
(129) — —
— — 1
427 332 296
925 827 348
342 169 14
161 156 161
252 151 97
2,564 2,069 1,325
4,491 3721 2,635
493 494 409
555 513 412
309 271 244
907 885 79
— — 3
199 173 150
212 155 98
975 591 532
8,141 6,803 5,279
1,536 1,457 794
531 198 —
$ 1005 $ 1259 $ 794
$ 05 $ 070 $ 044
$ 05 $ 068 $ 044
1,790,368 1,789,915 1,789,499
1,827,328 1,860,318 1,803,743
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Consolidated Statements of Changesin Stockholders Equity and Compr ehensive Income

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(In thousands except shares of common stock)

Balance, December 31, 2004

Comprehensive income

Net income

Net change in unrealized gain on investment securities avail able-for-sale,
net of tax benefit of ($269)

Reclassification adjustment

Total comprehensiveincome

Balance, December 31, 2005

Comprehensive income

Net income

Net change in unrealized loss on investment securities available-for-sale,
net of tax expense of $30

Total comprehensiveincome

I ssuance of common stock

Balance, December 31, 2006

Comprehensive income

Net income

Net change in unrealized gain on investment securities avail able-for-sale,
net of tax expense of $166

Total comprehensiveincome

Recapitalization to no par stock

Cumulative effect of achange in accounting principle

I ssuance of common stock

Balance, December 31, 2007

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

45

Accumulated
Retained Other
Common Stock Earnings Comprehensive

Shares Amount Surplus (Deficit) Income (L 0ss) Total
1,789,499 $ 5368 $10445 $(1,075) $ 132 $14,870
— — — 794 — 794
— — — — (520) (520)
— — — — @ @

273

1789499 $ 5368 $10445 $ (281) $ (389) $15,143
— — — 1,259 — 1,259
—_ — — — 44 44
1,303
675 2 5 — — 7
1,790,174 $ 5370 $10450 $ 978 $ (345) $16,453
_ — — 1,005 = 1,005
— — — — 263 263
1,268

— 10450  (10,450) — — —
— — — (393) 345 (48)
1,300 11 — — — 11
1,791,474 $15831 $ — $ 1590 $ 263  $17,684
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:
Depreciation
Provision for |oan losses
Income earned on bank owned life insurance
Gains on sale of investments
Net changein trading assets
Loss from sale of foreclosed assets
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense
Income taxes payable
Net (accretion) amortization of discounts and premiums on securities
Changesin assets and liabilities:
Accrued income
Other assets
Accrued interest payable
Other liahilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Net decrease (increase) in federal funds sold
Activity in available-for-sale securities:
Purchases
Sales
Maturities and repayments
Activity in held-to-maturity securities:
Maturities and repayments
Redemptions (purchases) of Federal Home L oan Bank stock
Net increasein loans
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned
Net cash used ininvesting activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in deposits
Proceeds from issuance of guaranteed preferred beneficial interestsin the company’sjunior
subordinated debentures
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Repayment of borrowings
Decreasein federal funds purchased
I ssuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
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2007 2006 2005
$ 1,005 $ 1259 $ 794
541 535 397
448 333 508
(161) (155) (161)
— — @
24,071 — —
— 3
20 (385) (164)
676 (190) —
(51) 58 113
(257) (255) a77)
(118) (141) (172)
106 65 212
186 31 328
26,464 1,155 1,680
(1,695) 2,241 (9,039)
(18,025) — (1,590)
— — 1,276
1,168 4,425 6,728
— 137 310
40 (135) (185)
(53426)  (36,838)  (35,084)
(2,274) (747) (1,817)
— — 299
(74212)  (30917)  (39,102)
46,231 32,116 42,490
8,000 — —
— 15,500 8,200
(1500)  (14,200)  (13,250)
— — (155)
11 7 —
52,742 33423 37,285
4,994 3,661 (137)
5114 1,453 1,590
$10108 $ 5114 $ 1453
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(In thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid $ 8,707 $6,292 $3,490
Taxespaid $ 16 $ 750 $ 48
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Reclassification of available-for —sale and held-to-maturity Securitiesto trading $23984 $ — $ —
Investment in non-bank subsidiary $ 248 $— $ —

See Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Theresults presented here are for Oak Ridge Financia Services, Inc. (the “ Company”), the parent company of Bank of Oak Ridge (the “Bank”). In
2006, the Bank’ s Board of Directors and sharehol ders approved the formation of a bank holding company, of which the Bank would become a
wholly owned subsidiary. The reorganization was effected through a share exchange in which each of the Bank’s shareholders received one share
of common stock of the Company in exchange for each of his or her shares of the Bank’s common stock. The Company became the Bank’s parent
holding company in April of 2007. Because the Company has no separate operations and conducts no business on its own other than owning the
Bank, this discussion concerns primarily the business of the Bank. However, because the financial statements are presented on a consolidated
basis, the Company and the Bank are collectively referred to as the “Company” unless otherwise noted.

The Bank was organized and incorporated under the laws of the State of North Carolina and commenced operations on April 10, 2000. Including its
main office, the Bank operatesfive (5) full service branch officesin Oak Ridge, Summerfield, and Greensboro, North Carolina. As a state chartered
bank, which is not amember of the Federal Reserve, the Bank is subject to regulation by the North Carolina Commissioner of Banks (the
“Commissioner”) and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”). The Bank has formed an investment subsidiary, Oak Ridge
Financial Corporation, that has not been funded and isinactive.

The Company formed Oak Ridge Statutory Trust | (the “Trust”) during 2007 to facilitate the issuance of trust preferred securities. The Trust isa
statutory business trust formed under the laws of the state of Delaware, of which all common securities are owned by the Company. Under
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. (“FIN") 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, Oak Ridge Financial
Statutory Trust | is not included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The junior subordinated debenturesissued by the Company
to thetrust are included in long-term debt and the Company’s equity interest in the trust isincluded in other assets.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company follow generally accepted accounting principles and general practices within the financial
servicesindustry.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior period’s financial statementsto place them on a comparable basis with the current year. Net
income and stockholders’ equity previously reported were not affected by these reclassifications.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts and transactions of the Company and the Bank, its wholly owned
subsidiary. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Critical Accounting Policies

The notes to the Company’s audited financial statements contain a summary of its significant accounting policies. We believe its policies with
respect to the methodol ogy for its determination of the allowance for loan losses and asset impairment judgmentsinvolve a higher degree of
complexity and require management to make difficult and subjective judgments, which often require estimates about highly uncertain matters.
Changes in these judgments, assumptions or estimates could cause reported resultsto differ materially. These critical policies and their application
are periodically reviewed with the Audit Committee and its Board of Directors.
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Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

Business Segments

The Company reportsits activities as a single business segment. In determining the appropriateness of segment definition, the Company
considersthe materiality of apotential segment and components of the business about which financial information is available and regularly
evaluated relative to resource allocation and performance assessment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change rel ate to the determination of the allowance for |oan losses. In connection
with the determination of the allowances for loan losses, management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties.

Substantially the Company’s entire loan portfolio consists of loansin its market area. Accordingly, the ultimate collectibility of a substantial
portion of the Company’sloan portfolio and the recovery of a substantial portion of the carrying amount of foreclosed real estate are susceptible
to changesin local market conditions. The regional economy is diverse and isinfluenced by the manufacturing and retail segment of the economy.

While management uses available information to recognize loan and foreclosed real estate |osses, future additions to the allowances may be
necessary based on changesin local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as a part of their routine examination process,
periodically review the Company’s allowances for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowances
based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examinations. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible
that the allowances for loan losses may change materially in the near term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those amounts included in the balance
sheet caption “cash and due from banks” and “interest-bearing deposits with banks.”

Trading Assets

The Company currently holds one investment security with afair value of $802,000 in its trading assets portfolio. Trading assets are recorded at
fair value with changesin fair value included in earnings.

Securities Held-to-Maturity

Bonds, notes, and debentures for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at cost, adjusted for
premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity or to call dates.
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Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Securities Available-for-Sale

Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value and consist of bonds, notes, debentures, and certain equity securities not classified as
trading securities or as held-to-maturity securities.

Unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are reported as a net amount in a separate component of stockholders' equity.
Realized gains and losses on the sale of avail able-for-sale securities are determined using the specific-identification method. Premiums and
discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity or to call dates.

Declinesin thefair value of individual held-to-maturity and avail able-for-sale securities below cost that are other than temporary are reflected as
write-downs of the individual securitiesto fair value. Related write-downs are included in earnings as realized | osses.

Loans Receivable

The Company grants mortgage, commercia and consumer loansto customers. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is represented by
commercial and retail mortgage loans throughout the Triad region of North Carolina.

L oans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are reported at their
outstanding principa amount adjusted for any charge-offs and the allowance for |oan losses. L oan origination fees and certain direct origination
costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the yield of the related |oan. Discounts and premiums on any purchased residential real
estate |oans are amortized to income using the interest method over the remaining period to contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated
prepayments. Discounts and premiums on any purchased consumer loans are recognized over the expected lives of the loans using methods that
approximate the interest method.

The accrual of interest on mortgage, commercial and consumer loansis generally discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due unless the
loan iswell-secured and in the process of collection. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on
nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier dateif collection of principal and interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off are reversed against interest income. The interest on
these loansis accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status
when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowancefor Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as |osses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings.
Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of aloan balance is confirmed. Subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is eval uated on aregular basis by management and is based upon management’ s periodic review of the collectibility
of theloansin light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’ s ability to
repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation isinherently subjective, asit requires
estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.
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Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Allowancefor Loan Losses, continued

The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loansthat are classified asimpaired.
For such loans, an alowance is established when the collateral value or observable market price of the impaired loan islower than the carrying
value of that loan. The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on the historical 10ss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of probable losses. The
unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodol ogies for
estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probabl e that the Company will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by
management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest
payments when due. L oans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified asimpaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on aloan by |oan basis for commercial
and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s
obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if theloanis collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous |oans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company does not separately
identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial I nstruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commitments under commercial and
standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

Derivative Financial I nstruments

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS’) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” This Statement requiresthat all derivatives be recognized as assets or liabilitiesin the balance sheet and measured at fair value.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
I nterest Rate Swap Agreements

For asset/liability management purposes, the Company, on alimited basis, uses interest rate swap agreements to hedge various exposures or to
modify interest rate characteristics of various balance sheet accounts. Such derivatives are used as part of the asset/liability management process
and are linked to specific assets or liabilities, and have ahigh correlation between the contract and the underlying item being hedged, both at
inception and throughout the hedge period.

Under SFAS No. 133, acertificate of deposit (“CD”) that pays “interest” based on changesin an equity securitiesindex is ahybrid instrument with
an imbedded derivative that must be accounted for separately from the host contract, i.e., the CD. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had
outstanding $541,000 of equity-indexed CDs. At the maturity date of an equity-indexed CD, the holder of the CD receives the original amount
invested in the CD plus some of the appreciation, if any, in an index of the S& P 500 over the term of the CD. Thus, the equity-indexed CD contains
an embedded equity call option. To manage the market risk of its equity-indexed CDs, the Company enters into separate freestanding equity
derivative contracts with an overall term that matches the five-year term of the CDs. At maturity, these separate derivatives are expected to provide
the Company with a cash payment in an amount equal to the amount of appreciation, if any, in the same stock priceindex that is embedded in the
CDs, thereby providing the Company with the fundsto pay the “interest” on the equity-indexed CDs. During the term of the separate freestanding
equity derivative contracts, the Company periodically makes variable payments to the counterparty on these contracts. As of December 31, 2007,
the Company had no other interest rate swap agreements other than those related to equity-indexed CDs.

Under SFAS No. 133, the gain or loss on aderivative designated and qualifying as afair value hedging instrument, as well as the offsetting gain or
loss on the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged, is recognized currently in earnings in the same accounting period. The effective
portion of the gain or loss on aderivative designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedging instrument isinitially reported as a component of
other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into earningsin the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction
affects earnings. Theineffective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, if any, isrecognized currently in earnings.

Interest rate derivative financial instruments receive hedge accounting treatment only if they are designated as a hedge and are expected to be, and
are, effectivein substantially reducing interest rate risk arising from the assets and liabilities identified as exposing the Company to risk. Those
derivative financial instruments that do not meet the hedging criteria discussed below would be classified as trading activities and would be
recorded at fair value with changesin fair value recorded in income. Derivative hedge contracts must meet specific effectivenesstests (i.e., over
time the changein their fair values due to the designated hedge risk must be within 80 to 125 percent of the opposite change in the fair values of
the hedged assets or liabilities). Changesin fair value of the derivative financial instruments must be effective at offsetting changesin the fair
value of the hedged items due to the designated hedge risk during the term of the hedge. Further, if the underlying financial instrument differs from
the hedged asset or liability, there must be a clear economic relationship between the prices of the two financial instruments. If periodic

assessment indicates derivatives no longer provide an effective hedge, the derivatives contracts would be closed out and settled or classified asa
trading activity.

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, hedges of variable-rate debt are accounted for as cash flow hedges, with changesin fair value recorded in
derivative assets or liabilities and other comprehensive income. The net settlement (upon close out or termination) that offsets changesin the
value of the hedged debt is deferred and amortized into net interest income over the life of the hedged debt. Hedges of fixed-rate loans are
accounted for asfair value hedges, with changesin fair value recorded in derivative assets or liabilities and loan interest income. The net
settlement (upon close out or termination) that offsets changesin the value of the loans adjusts the basis of the loans and is deferred and
amortized to loan interest income over the life of the loans. The portion, if any, of the net settlement amount that did not offset changesin the
value of the hedged asset or liability isrecognized immediately in non-interest income.

Cash flows resulting from the derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as hedges of assets and liabilities are classified in the cash
flow statement in the same category as the cash flows of the items being hedged.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Property and Equipment

Landiscarried at cost and is not depreciated. Company premises and furniture and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation
and amortization computed principally by the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives. L easehold improvements are amortized
over the estimated life of the respective lease.

Years
Buildings and improvements 3-30
Furniture and equipment 3-10

Foreclosed Properties and Repossessed Assets

Properties acquired through, or in lieu of, |oan foreclosure or repossession are to be sold and areinitially recorded at fair value less anticipated
cost to sell at the date of foreclosure or repossession establishing anew cost basis. After foreclosure or repossession, management periodically
performs val uations, and the property is carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from
operations and changesin the valuation allowance are included in loss on foreclosed or repossessed properties.

Bank Owned Life lnsurance

The amount that could be realized under the insurance contract as of the balance sheet date is reported as an asset.

Stock-based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “ Share-Based Payment”, which revised SFAS No. 123, “ Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation”. This Statement supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “ Accounting for Stock 1ssued to Employees”,
and related implementation guidance and amends SFAS No. 95, “ Statement of Cash Flows”. It requires that all stock-based compensation now be
measured at fair value and recognized as an expense in the statements of operations. This Statement also clarifies and expands guidance on
measuring fair value of stock compensation, requires estimation of forfeitures when determining expense, and requires that excess tax benefits be
shown as financing cash inflows versus a reduction of taxes paid in the Statement of Cash Flows. Various other changes are also required. This
Statement was effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2006.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective application as permitted under SFAS No. 123(R). Accordingly, prior
period amounts have not been restated. Under this application, the Company is required to record compensation expense for all awards granted
after the date of adoption and for the unvested portion of previously granted awards that remain outstanding at the date of adoption.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company applied APB No. 25. Under APB No. 25, stock purchasesissued under the Company’s
stock option plans have no intrinsic value at the grant date, and therefore, no compensation cost is recognized for them.

All outstanding options vested prior to January 1, 2006; therefore, consistent with the prospective application methodology, no compensation
expense was recoghized in the year ended December 31, 2006. There was no unrecognized compensation cost at December 31, 2007 and the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) has had no affect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Transfersof Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assetsis
deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that
constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective
control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Advertising Expense

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense for the years presented are not material.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in accounting for income taxes as required by SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“ SFAS 109”). Under this
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for operating loss and tax credit carry forwards and for the future tax consegquences
attributabl e to the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of achangein tax ratesisrecognized in the
results of operationsin the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets unlessit ismore likely than not those such assets will be realized.

When applicable, adeferred income tax asset or liability isrecorded in other assets or liabilities, respectively, to reflect changesin the value of
available-for-sale investment securities. Such unrealized appreciation or depreciation is recorded net of deferred income taxes as an adjustment to
equity and not included in income until realized.

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
(“FIN 48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’ s financial statementsin accordance with
SFAS 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of atax position taken or expected to be taken in atax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures and transition. The Bank’s policy isto classify any interest or
penalties recognized in accordance with FIN 48 asinterest expense or an expense other than income tax expense, respectively. There was no
cumulative effect adjustment upon adoption of FIN 48. Y ears prior to December 31, 2004 are closed for federal, state and local income tax matters.
The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in itstax returns and concluded it has no liability related to uncertain
tax positionsin accordance with FIN 48.

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period, after giving retroactive effect to stock splits and dividends.

Diluted Earnings per Share

The computation of diluted earnings per shareis similar to the computation of basic earnings per share except that the denominator isincreased to
include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued. The
numerator is adjusted for any changesin income or loss that would result from the assumed conversion of those potential common shares.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Comprehensive Income

Annual comprehensive income reflects the change in the Company’s equity during the year arising from transactions and events other than
investment by and distributions to shareholders. It consists of net income plus certain other changes in assets and liabilities that are reported as
separate components of stockholder’s equity rather than asincome or expense.

Fair Value of Financial I nstruments

SFASNo. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments (“SFAS 107”) requires disclosure of fair value information about financial
instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on
estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the
discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair val ue estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of theinstruments. SFAS 107 excludes certain financial
instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair val ue amounts presented do not
represent the underlying value of the Company.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments:
Cash and due from banks: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.
Interest-bearing deposits with banks: Fair values for time deposits are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysisthat appliesinterest rates

currently being offered on certificates to a schedul e of aggregated contractual maturities on such time deposits. Carrying values of interest-bearing
deposits approximate their fair values.

Federal funds sold: The carrying amounts for Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (“FHLB") stock owned by the Bank approximate fair value.

Trading assets: Fair values for securities, excluding restricted equity securities, are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments. The carrying values of restricted equity
securities approximate fair values.

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities: Fair values for trading assets are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock: The carrying amounts for Federal Home Loan Bank Stock approximate fair value.

Loansreceivable: For variable-rate |oans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying
amounts. Thefair values for other |oans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on interest rates currently being offered for
loans with similar termsto borrowers of similar credit quality. Loan fair value estimates include judgments regarding future expected |oss
experience and risk characteristics. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values,
where applicable. The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximatesitsfair value.

Bank owned lifeinsurance: The carrying values of bank owned life insurance approximates the fair value.
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Fair Value of Financial | nstruments, continued

Deposit liabilities: The fair values disclosed for demand and savings deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow cal culation that appliesinterest rates currently
being offered on certificates to a schedul e of aggregated contractual maturities on such time deposits. The carrying amount of accrued interest
payable approximates fair value.

Short-termdebt: The carrying values of short-term debt approximate their fair values.

Long-termdebt: The fair values of the Company’s long-term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on the Company’s
current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings.

Junior subordinated debentures: Thefair values of the Company’s |ong-term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on
the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowings.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 definesfair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This
standard eliminates inconsistencies found in various prior pronouncements but does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for the Company on January 1, 2008, with early adoption allowed on January 1, 2007.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 157 in the first quarter of 2007. Listed below are disclosuresrelated to SFAS No. 157:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2007
Quoted Pricesin

Fair Value Active Markets Significant Other Significant
M easur ements for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable
Description 12/31/07 Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
(Dollars in thousands)
Trading securities $ 802 $ 802 $ — $ =
Available-for-sale securities 17,353 17,353 — —

Asof January 1, 2007, the Company elected the fair value option under SFAS No. 157 for its trading assets, securities available-for-sale and
securities held-to-maturity. The change in the fair value for the year ended December 31, 2007 for trading assets was $36,000. This change was
included in current period earnings, offset by a $165,000 |oss on the sale of the Company’s trading securities in the second quarter of 2007.

Any investment security purchased is classified in one of the following categories: 1) trading, 2) available-for-sale, or 3) held-to-maturity. Prior to
the Bank’s early adoption of SFAS No. 159, the majority of the securitiesin its portfolio had been classified as available-for-sale, while no
securities were classified in the trading category. Available-for-sale securities are reviewed regularly, and any unrealized gains or losses are
recorded in comprehensive income in the shareholders' equity account. In contrast, any change in market value of trading securities during the
period isreflected in current period income. Generally, falling interest rates will increase the market values of securities, thus enhancing the
amounts recorded as gains or reducing losses, while rising rates will have the opposite effect. The passage of time partially counteracts these
interest rate effects, asthe unrealized gain or loss on a given security will gradually decline to zero as the security approaches its maturity date.

The Company did adopt SFAS No. 159 as of January 1, 2007. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 159, the Company selected the fair value option for its
entire available-for-sale and hel d-to-maturity securities portfolio consisting of government sponsored enterprise and mortgage-backed securities
with afair market value at January 1, 2007 of $25.0 million. Listed below are the financial details of the early adoption of SFAS No. 159:

* Asof January 1, 2007, the Company €elected the fair value option for its entire securities portfolio which had afair market value of $25.0
million as of that date;

* Asaresult of the above election, the Company’s entire securities portfolio was reclassified from available-for-sal e and held-to-maturity
categoriesto the trading category;

+  Theinitial adoption of SFAS No. 159 had a minimal negative impact on total stockholders' equity of $48,000 due to the reclassification of the
Company’s held-to-maturity category to the trading category;

*  Thecumulative-effect adjustment of $393,000, representing the unrealized loss on the Company’s entire securities portfolio (net of tax), was
reclassified from accumul ated other comprehensive loss as a reduction of Retained Earnings, on January 1, 2007,
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements, continued

*  Netincome for the year ended December 31, 2007 includes a pre-tax gain of $36,000, representing the change in fair value from January 1,
2007 to December 31, 2007 of the Company’s trading securities, and includes a $165,000 pre-tax |oss on the sale of substantially all of the
Company’strading securities in the second quarter of 2007. The amounts are included in trading income in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations; and

* Interest income earned on the trading securitiesisincluded in interest income from taxable investment securities in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

Listed below isthe transition impact of electing the fair value option under SFAS 159:

Ending Opening
Balance Sheet Adoption Net Balance Sheet
December 31, 2006 Gain/(loss) January 1, 2007
(in thousands)

Securities available-for-sale $ 23,403 $ — $ —

Securities held-to-maturity 1,613 (79) —
Cumulative-effect adjustment, pre-tax (79)
Tax impact 31
Cumulative-effect adjustment, net-of-tax, decrease to retained earnings $ (48)

The Company believesits early adoption of the accounting standard had a positive impact on its ability to manage the interest rate risk on its
balance sheet by lengthening the duration of its portfolio, and simplified the accounting for itsinvestment portfolio by reducing the number of
purchased securities from what it presently owns. Management believes the adoption of the accounting standard benefited interest income, net
income and basic and diluted earnings per share during 2007.

In September 2006, The FA SB ratified the consensuses reached by the FASB’s Emerging I ssues Task Force (“EITF”) relating to EITF 06-4,
“Accounting for the Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance

Arrangements” (“EITF 06-4"). Entities purchase life insurance for various reasons including protection against oss of key employees and to fund
postretirement benefits. The two most common types of life insurance arrangements are endorsement split dollar life and collateral assignment split
dollar life. EITF 06-4 covers the former and EITF 06-10 (discussed below) coversthe latter. EITF 06-4 states that entities with endorsement split-
dollar life insurance arrangements that provide a benefit to an employee that extends to postretirement periods should recognize aliability for
future benefits in accordance with SFAS No. 106, “Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” (if, in substance, a
postretirement benefit plan exists) or Accounting Principles Board (“ APB”) Opinion No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion—1967" (if the arrangement is, in
substance, an individual deferred compensation contract). Entities should recognize the effects of applying this Issue through either (a) achange
in accounting principle through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings or to other components of equity or net assetsin the
statement of financial position as of the beginning of the year of adoption or (b) a change in accounting principle through retrospective
application to all prior periods. EITF 06-4 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company did adopt EITF 06-04 on January 1, 2008
which resulted in a $259,000 decrease to retained earnings.
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In September 2006, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-5, “ Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance—Determining the
Amount That Could Be Realized in Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance” (“EITF 06-
5”). EITF 06-5 states that a policyholder should consider any additional amountsincluded in the contractual terms of the insurance policy other
than the cash surrender value in determining the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract. EITF 06-5 also states that a
policyholder should determine the amount that could be realized under the life insurance contract assuming the surrender of an individual-life by
individual-life policy (or certificate by certificate in agroup policy). EITF 06-5 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company does
not believe the adoption of EITF 06-5 will have amaterial impact on itsfinancial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2007, the FASB ratified the consensus reached on EITF 06-10, “ Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance
Arrangements” (“EITF 06-10"). The postretirement aspect of this EITF is substantially similar to EITF 06-4 discussed above and requires that an
employer recognize aliability for the postretirement benefit related to a collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangement in accordance
with either FASB Statement No. 106 or APB Opinion No. 12, as appropriate, if the employer has agreed to maintain alife insurance policy during
the employee’ s retirement or provide the employee with a death benefit based on the substantive agreement with the employee. In addition, a
consensus was reached that an employer should recognize and measure an asset based on the nature and substance of the collateral assignment
split-dollar life insurance arrangement. EITF 06-10 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2008. The Company does not believe the adoption of
EITF 06-10 will have amaterial impact on itsfinancial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In November 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, “Written Loan Commitments
Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings” (“SAB 109”). SAB 109 expresses the current view of the SEC staff that the expected net future cash
flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all written loan commitments that are accounted for
at fair value through earnings. SEC registrants are expected to apply this guidance on a prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued or
modified in the first quarter of 2008 and thereafter. The Company is currently analyzing the impact of this guidance, which relatesto the
Company’s mortgage loans held for sale.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations,” (“ SFAS 141(R)”) which replaces SFAS 141. SFAS 141(R)
establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business combination recognizes and measuresin its financial statementsthe
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any controlling interest; recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in the business
combination or again from abargain purchase; and determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statementsto evaluate
the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) is effective for acquisitions by the Company taking place on or after
January 1, 2009. Early adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, a calendar year-end company is required to record and disclose business combinations
following existing accounting guidance until January 1, 2009. The Company will assess theimpact of SFAS 141(R) if and when afuture acquisition
occurs.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interestsin Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB

No. 51" (“SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in asubsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Before this statement, limited guidance existed for reporting noncontrolling interests (minority interest). Asa
result, diversity in practice exists. In some cases minority interest is reported as aliability and in othersit isreported in the mezzanine section
between liabilities and equity. Specifically, SFAS 160 requires the recognition of anoncontrolling interest (minority interest) as equity in the
consolidated financials statements and separates from the parent’ s equity. The amount of net income attributable to the noncontrolling interest
will beincluded in consolidated net income on the face of the income statement. SFAS 160 clarifies that changesin a parent’s ownership interest in
asubsidiary that do not result in deconsolidation are equity transactionsif the parent retainsits controlling financial interest. In addition, this
statement requires that a parent recognize gain or lossin net income when asubsidiary is deconsolidated. Such gain or losswill be measured using
the fair value of the noncontrolling equity investment on the deconsolidation date. SFAS 160 al so includes expanded disclosure requirements
regarding the interests of the parent and its noncontrolling interests. SFAS 160 is effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. Earlier adoptionis
prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 160 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 2. Restrictionson Cash

To comply with banking regul ations, the Company is sometimes required to maintain certain average cash reserve balances. It had cash reserve
requirements as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 of $1,693,000 and $420,000, respectively.
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The amortized cost and fair value of securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, follows:

December 31, 2007

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value

(in thousands)
Available-for-sale

Government-sponsored enterprise securities $ 3,946 $ 68 $ — $ 4,014
M ortgage-backed securities 12,987 352 — 13,339
Total securities available-for-sale $ 16,933 $ 420 $ — $17,353

December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value

(in thousands)
Available-for-sale

Government-sponsored enterprise securities $ 5859 $ — $ 77 $ 5782

M ortgage-backed securities 18,112 2 493 17,621

Total securities available-for-sale $ 23,971 $ 2 $ 570 $23,403
Held-to-maturity

M ortgage-backed securities $ 1,613 $ 4 $ 85 $ 1,532

Total securities held-to-maturity $ 1,613 $ 4 $ 85 $ 1532

The Bank had $1,093,000 and $1,133,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, of investmentsin stock of the FHLB, whichiscarried at cost.
The FHLB requires financial institutions to make equity investmentsin the FHLB in order to borrow money. The Bank is required to hold that stock
so long asit borrows from the FHLB.

Investment securities with amortized costs of $1,806,000 and $6,722,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were pledged as collateral on public
deposits or for other purposes as required or permitted by law.
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Grossrealized gains and losses for the years ended December 31 follows:

December 31,

2007 2006 2005

(in thousands)

Realized gains $— $— $ 1
Realized losses — —

$— $— $ 1

The following table details unrealized losses and related fair values in the Company’ s held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment securities
portfolios at December 31, 2006. The Company had no securities with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2007. Thisinformation is aggregated by
the length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized l0ss position as of December 31, 2006.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value L osses Value L osses Value L osses
2006 (in thousands)
Available-for-sale
Government sponsored enterprise securities $ — $ — $ 5782 % 77 $5782 $ 77
M ortgage-backed securities — — 17,155 493 17,155 493
Total temporarily impaired securities $ — $ — $ 22937 $ 570 $22937 $ 570
Held-to-maturity
Government sponsored enterprise securities $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
M ortgage-backed securities — — 1,133 85 1,133 85
Total temporarily impaired securities $ — $ — $ 1133 $ 8 $1133 $ 85

Management considers the nature of the investment, the underlying causes of the decline in market value, the severity and duration of the decline
in market value and other evidence, on a security by security basis, in determining if the decline in market valueis other than temporary.
Management believes all unrealized |osses presented in the table above to be temporary in nature.

There were no debt securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2007. All of these investments are either government-sponsored enterprises
or mortgage-backed securities. In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, management considers whether the securities are issued by the federal
government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and industry analysts' reports. As management has the
ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the foreseeable futureif classified as available-for-sale, no declines are deemed to be other than
temporary.
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Maturities of mortgage-backed securities are presented based on contractual amounts. Actual maturitieswill vary as the underlying loans prepay.
The scheduled maturities of securities at December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Cost Value Cost Value

(in thousands)

Duein one year or less $ 2965 $2981 $ — $—
Due after one year through five years 980 1,033 — —
Due after five years through ten years 3,186 3,256 — —
Due after ten years 9,802 10,083 — —
$16,933 $17,353 $ — $—

Note 4. L oans Receivable
The major components of 1oans on the balance sheet at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)

Commercial $ 83,08 $ 51,923
Rea estate:

Construction and development 55,588 33,382
Residential, 1-4 families 52,187 45,515
Residential, 5 or more families 3,379 1,501
Nonfarm, nonresidential 12,672 21,198
Agricultural 2,159 2,214
Consumer 3,899 3,851
212,969 159,584
Deferred loan origination fees, net of costs (148) (157)
Allowance for loan losses (2,120) (1,704)

$210,701  $157,723

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately $202,000 and $531,000, respectively, of overdraft demand deposit accounts have been reclassified as
loans. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately $32,967,000 and $32,990,000, respectively, in first and second lien 1-4 family residential loans
were pledged as collateral for short- and long-term FHLB advances.
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An analysis of the changesin the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31 isasfollows:

At or for the Years Ended

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $1,704 $1,410 $ 970
Charge-offs:
Real estate-mortgage — (15) —
Commercia and industrial (19 (10) (37)
Loansto individuals (35) (14) (34
Total charge-offs (54) (39) (71)
Recoveries:
Commercia and industrial — — 1
Loansto individuals 22 — 2
Total recoveries 22 — 3
Net (charge-offs) recoveries (32 (39) (68)
Provision for loan |osses charged to operations 448 333 508
Balance at end of period $2,120 $1,704 $1,410
Ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.02% 0.03% 0.06%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to loans outstanding at period-end 1.00% 1.06% 1.15%
Thefollowing isasummary of information pertaining to impaired loans:
December 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
Impaired loans without a valuation allowance $312 $213
Impaired loans with a valuation allowance — 140
Total impaired loans $312 $353
Valuation allowance related to impaired loans $— $ 10

Nonaccrual loans were $15,000 and $353,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Loans past-due ninety days or more and still accruing
totaled $365,000 at December 31, 2007. There were no loans past-due ninety days or more and still accruing at December 31, 2006.
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The average annual recorded investment in impaired loans and interest income recognized on impaired loans for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005 (all approximate) are summarized below:

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Average investment in impaired loans $333 $78 $259
Interest income recognized for the year $26 $20 $ 72
Interest income recognized on a cash basis for the year $— $12 $69
No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with impaired |oans.
Note 6. Property and Equipment
Components of Property and Equipment
Components of property and equipment and total accumulated depreciation are as follows:
December 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
Land, buildings and improvements $ 3571 $ 3,596
Construction in progress 2,415 342
Furniture and equipment 2,907 2,842
Property and equipment, total 8,893 6,780
L ess accumulated depreciation (2,138) (1,758)
Property and equipment, net of depreciation $ 6,755 $ 5,022

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $541,000, $535,000 and $397,000, respectively. As of December 31,
2007, the Company wasin the final stages of completing construction of its fifth banking office, and its third banking office in Greensboro. The
banking office opened for business on January 28, 2008. The total estimated cost of the building, computer equipment and furniture and fixturesis
approximately $2.7 million.

Leases

The Company has non-cancel able operating leases for four branch locations. These |ease agreements have terms ranging from 5 to 20 years and
will expire between 2010 and 2023. Rent expense related to these |eases was $289,000, $286,000 and $229,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Pursuant to the terms of the non-cancelable |ease agreements in effect at December 31, 2007, the schedul e of future
minimum rent paymentsis asfollows: (dollars in thousands)

2008 $ 281
2009 293
2010 299
2011 305
2012 308
Thereafter 3,494

$4.980
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Note 7. Deposits

The aggregate amount of time depositsin denominations of one hundred thousand dollars or more at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $45,662,000
and $34,951,000, respectively. At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: (dollars in thousands)

Three months or less $ 31,934
Four months to one year 80,215
Two to three years 19,118
Threeto four years 1,290
Four to five years 9
Thereafter —
$132,566

Note 8. Borrowed Funds
Short-term debt

Short-term debt consists of Federal funds purchased and short-term FHLB advances. Federal funds purchased generally mature within oneto
seven days from the transaction date. FHL B advances generally mature within one year. Additional information related to short-term debt is
summarized below:

Asof or Period Ending

December 31,
2007 2006
(dollars in thousands)
Outstanding balance at December 31 $ — $ 1,500
Y ear-end weighted average rate — 5.50%
Average outstanding during the period $ 1,084 $ 11,620
Average rate for the period 5.44% 5.11%
Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the period $ 6,000 $ 16,200

Long-term debt

L ong-term debt of $16,000,000 was outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and consisted of Federal Home Loan Bank advances as described
below.

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Asamember of the FHLB, the Bank has the ability to borrow up to 10 percent of total assetsin the form of FHLB advances. At December 31, 2007
advances of $16,000,000 that were classified aslong-term debt were outstanding, which were the same two FHL B advances classified aslong-term
debt as of December 31, 2006. The average amount outstanding during 2007 and 2006 was $16,000,000 and $5,406,000, respectively. Approximately
$32,967,000 in first and second lien 1-4 family residential |oans were pledged as collateral for short- and long-term FHLB advances at December 31,
2007.

Current
Maturity Date Balance Rate Type of Debt, Rate Repricing Frequency
7/28/08 $ 9,000,000 5.01% FHLB Advances, Quarterly, next reprice date 1/28/2008
5/28/08 7,000,000 5.01% FHLB Advances, Quarterly, next reprice date 2/28/2008

$16,000,000
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Note 8. Borrowed Funds, continued
Junior Subordinated Debentures

The Trust was created by the Company on June 28, 2007, at which time the Trust issued $8.0 million in aggregate liquidation amount of $1 par
value preferred capital trust securities which mature June 28, 2037. Distributions are payable on the securities at the floating rate equal to the three
month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.60%, and the securities may be prepaid at par by the Trust at any time after June 28, 2012.
The principal assets of the Trust are $8.3 million of the Company’sjunior subordinated debentures which mature on June 28, 2037, and bear
interest at the floating rate equal to the three month LIBOR plus 1.60%, and which are callable by the Company after June 28, 2012. All $248,000in
the aggregate liquidation amount of the Trust’s common securities are held by the Company.

Linesof Credit

The Company has established lines of credit with a correspondent bank to provide additional liquidity if needed. The federal funds purchased line
of credit is approximately $3,500,000. At December 31, 2007 and 2006 there were not outstanding balances on the federal funds purchased line of
credit. Additionally, the Company has aline of credit with the FHLB secured by a blanket lien on eligible 1-4 family loans and home equity lines of
credit. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the total unused portion of thisline of credit was approximately $6,774,000 and $5,272,000, respectively.

Note 9. Fair Value of Financial I nstruments
Fair Values

The estimated fair values of the Company’sfinancial instruments are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Federal funds sold
Trading assets
Securities, available-for-sale
Securities, held-to-maturity
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Loans, net of allowance for |loan |osses
Bank owned life Insurance

Financial liabilities
Deposits
Short term debt
Junior subordinated notes related to trust preferred securities
L ong-term debt

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2006

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value
$ 10108 $ 10,108 $ 5114 $ 5114
8,493 8,493 6,798 6,798

802 802 — —
17,353 17,353 23,403 23,403
— — 1,613 1,532
1,093 1,093 1,133 1,133
210,701 209,307 157,723 155,963
4,269 4,269 4,107 4,107
218,516 205,956 172,285 170,890
— — 1,500 1,500

8,248 8,248 — —
16,000 16,000 16,000 15,997
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Derivative Financial I nstruments

The Company uses derivativesto fix future cash flows for interest payments on some of its floating rate certificates of deposit. In thisregard, the
Company has entered into a series of interest rate swap agreements with the FHL B to fix the interest rate on specific certificate of deposit products.
At December 31, 2007, the Company had $541,000 of certificates of deposit, which mature in 2008 and 2009, on which the Company paysthe FHLB
aweighted average interest rate and will receive an interest rate from the FHL B based on the appreciation of the S& P 500. Thisinterest received
from the FHLB will be paid to the customer when received. The fair value of the embedded derivative was $183,000 and $142,000 and the fair value
of the interest rate swap was $200,000 and $182,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Thefair value of the embedded derivativeis
recorded in other assets and the fair value of the interest rate swap is recorded in other liabilities. The change in fair value isincluded in other
expense. Interest expense is reflected currently at the amount paid to the FHLB.

Note 10. Earnings per Share
The following table details the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Net income (in thousands) $ 1,005 $ 1259 $ 794
Weighted average common shares outstanding 1,790,368 1,789,915 1,789,499
Effect of dilutive securities (options) 36,960 70,403 14,244
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 1,827,328 1,860,318 1,803,743
Basic earnings per share $ 0.56 $ 0.70 $ 0.44
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.55 $ 0.68 $ 0.44

At December 31, 2007, 42,566 exercisable options had an exercise price greater than the average market price for the year and were not included in
computing diluted earnings per share. At December 31, 2006, all exercisable options had an exercise price less than the average market price for the
period.

Note 11. Benefit Plans
Defined Contribution Plan

The Company maintains a profit sharing plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”) of 1986, as amended. The plan
covers substantially al employees. Participants may contribute a percentage of compensation, subject to the maximum allowed under the Code. In
addition, the Company may make additional contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company contributed $104,000, $78,000,
and $54,000 during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Flexible Benefits Plan

The Company maintains a Flexible Benefits Plan, which covers substantially all employees. Participants may set aside pre-tax dollarsto provide for
the future expenses such asinsurance, dependant care or health care.

Cash Valueof Lifelnsurance

The Company isthe owner and beneficiary of life insurance policies on certain executive officers. Policy cash values on the balance sheet totaled
$4,269,000 at December 31, 2007, and $4,107,000 at December 31, 2006.
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Note 11. Benefit Plans, continued
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

In January of 2006, the Company adopted a supplemental executive retirement plan to provide benefits for certain members of management. Under
plan provisions, aggregate fixed annual payments of $252,400 are payable for these members of management for their lifetime, beginning with their
normal retirement ages of 65. Theliability is calculated by discounting the anticipated future cash flows at 6 percent. The liability accrued for this
obligation was $353,000 and $176,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Charges to income and expense are based on changesin the
cash value of insurance as well as any additional charges required to fund the liability.

Stock Option Plans

The Company has adopted both the Employee Stock Option Plan (Incentive Plan) and the Director Stock Option Plan (Nonstatutory Plan).
Under each plan up to 178,937 shares may beissued for atotal of 357,874 shares. Options granted under both plans expire no more than 10 years
from date of grant. Option exercise price under both plans shall be set by a committee of the Board of Directors at the date of grant, but shall not be
less than 100 percent of fair market value at the date of the grant. Options granted under either plan vest according to the terms of each particular
grant.

Activity under the Company plans during the year ended December 31, 2007 is summarized below:

Incentive Plan Nonstatutory Plan
Available Available
For Grant Granted For Grant Granted
Balance, December 31, 2006 950 177,187 3 178,934
Additional options made available
Granted — — — —
Exercised — (1,300) — —
Forfeited 2650 (2,650 — —
Expired — — — —
Balance, December 31, 2007 3,600 173,237 3 178,934

The intrinsic value of the options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $400 and $1,300, respectively. The cash
received from the options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $11,560 and $7,400, respectively.

A stock option may be exercised, in whole or in part, by giving written notice of exercise to the Corporate Secretary of the Company, or such other
officer of the Company as the Committee shall designate, specifying the number of sharesto be purchased along with payment in full of the
exercise price. The Committee may, in the relevant award agreement, also permit a participant (either on a selective or group basis) to
simultaneously exercise stock options and sell the shares of common stock thereby acquired, and use the proceeds from such sale as payment of
the exercise price of such stock options. Payment instruments shall be received by the Company subject to collection. The proceeds received by
the Company upon exercise of any stock option may be used by the Company for general corporate purposes.

69



Table of Contents

Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11. Benefit Plans, stock option plans, continued
Additional information relating to the plansis detailed below:

Grant-date fair value per share
Significant assumptions used in determining fair value of options granted
Risk-freeinterest rate
Expected lifein years
Expected dividends
Expected volatility

2007 2006 2005

$— $— $ 3.98
S — 4.44%
S — 10
S — 30.43%

At December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation using the accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees’. The Company was not required to adopt the fair value based recognition provisions prescribed
under SFAS No. 123, “ Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, but complied with the disclosure requirements set forth in SFAS No. 148,
which included disclosing pro formanet income asif the fair value based method of accounting had been applied. Thisinformation for the years

ended December 31, 2005 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

2005
Net income, as reported $794
Compensation cost determined under fair value based method $590
Pro formanet income? $ 204
Basic earnings per common share, as reported $0.44
Pro formabasic earnings per common share) $0.11
Diluted earnings per common share, as reported $0.44
Pro forma diluted earnings per common sharet) $0.11
@ Asif thefair value based method prescribed by SFAS No. 123 had been applied
Information regarding the stock options outstanding at December 31, 2007 is as follows (dollars in thousands):
Weighted Weighted
Number Average Average Aggregate
Outstanding Remaining Exercise Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Prices and Exercisable Contractual Life Price Value
$8.80-9.99 101,638 3.33 Years $ 880 $ 4
$10.00-10.39 141,856 6.67 Years $ 10.00 —
$10.40-11.20 108,677 6.54 Years $ 10.75 —
352,171 5.66 Years $ 987 $ 44

The weighted average exercise price for options outstanding at January 1, 2007 was $9.88, and the weighted average exercise price of options
forfeited during the year ended December 31, 2007 was $10.78. No compensation expense was recognized in 2006 or 2007 as all outstanding stock

options had vested prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(r).
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Note 12. Income Taxes
Current and Deferred | ncome Tax Components

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Current
Deferred
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance change

Tota

Rate Reconciliation

2007 2006 2005
$511 $583 $141
20 (82) 107
— (303)  (248)

$531 $198 $—

A reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) computed at the statutory federal income tax rate included in the statement of operationsfor the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows: (dollarsin thousands)

Tax at statutory federal rate

Income from bank owned life insurance

State taxes, net of federal benefit

Other

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance change

Tota

Deferred Income Tax Analysis

2007 2006 2005
$522  $49% 270
(55) (53) (62)
62 — —
2 59 40
— (303)  (248)
$531 $198 $—

The significant components of net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses
Accrued compensation
Unrealized depreciation on avail able-for-sale securities
Deferred loan fees
State net economic loss carry forward
Total deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax liabilities
Accretion of bond discount
Depreciation
Unrealized appreciation on available-for-sale securities
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset

2007 2006

$ 783 $ 625

174 110
— 239
57 61

12 —
1,026 1,035

12) —
1,014 1,035
47 40
213 207

178 —
438 247

$ 576 $ 788

The Company had analyzed the tax positions taken in it tax return and concluded it has no liability related to uncertain tax positionsin accordance

with FIN 48.
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Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

In the normal course of business the Company may beinvolved in various legal proceedings. The Company was not involved in any material
litigation for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Financial I nstruments with Off-balance-sheet Risk

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instrumentsinclude commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instrumentsinvolve, to varying
degrees, credit risk in excess of the amount recognized on the balance sheet.

The Company’s exposure to credit lossin the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitmentsto extend
credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policiesin
making commitments and conditional obligations asfor on-balance-sheet instruments. A summary of the Company’s commitments, which include
both fixed and variable rate instruments, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, is as follows (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006
Commitments to extend credit $29,633 $15,854
Standby letters of credit 360 602

$29,993 $16,456

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer aslong as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of afee. Since many of the commitments
are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The
Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the
Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the party. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property and egquipment, residential real estate and income-producing commercial properties.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitmentsissued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to athird party. Those
guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved inissuing letters of credit is
essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held varies as specified above and is required in instances,
which the Company deems necessary.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Substantially all of the Company’sloans, commitmentsto extend credit, and standby letters of credit have been granted to customersin the
Company’s market area and such customers are generally depositors of the Company. The concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forthin
Note 4. The distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. The Company’s primary focusis
toward consumer and small business transactions, and accordingly, it does not have a significant number of creditsto any single borrower or
group of related borrowersin excess of two million dollars.

The Company from time to time has cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions that exceed federally insured limits.
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Note 13. Commitmentsand Contingencies, continued
Other Commitments

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its key officers covering duties, salary, benefits, and provisions for
termination and Company obligationsin the event of amerger or acquisition.

Note 14. Regulatory Matters

The Company’s dividend payments will be made from dividends received from the Bank. The Bank, as a North Carolina banking corporation, may
pay dividends only out of undivided profits (retained earnings) as determined pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes 53-87. However,
regulatory authorities may limit payment of dividends by any bank when it is determined that such alimitation isin the publicinterest and is
necessary to ensure financial soundness of the Bank.

The Company (on aconsolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory (and possibly additional discretionary) actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, could have adirect material effect on the Company’s and Bank’sfinancial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and Bank must meet specific capital guidelinesthat involve quantitative
measures of the Company and Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as cal culated under regulatory accounting practices.
The capital amounts and classification are al so subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other
factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and Bank to maintain minimum amounts and
ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier 1
capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 that the Company and the Bank meets
all capital adequacy requirementsto which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2007, and 2006, the Bank met the criteriato be considered “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier | risk-based, and Tier | leverage
ratios as set forth in the following table. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have changed the
Bank’s category.
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The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table (dollars in thousands):

Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Action Provisions
Amount  Ratio Amount  Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2007
Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated $27541 122% $17,971 8.0% n/a n/a
Bank of Oak Ridge $23,374 10.4% $17,975 8.0% $ 22,468 10.0%
Tier | Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated $23228 103% $ 8987 4.0% n/a n/a
Bank of Oak Ridge $21,254 94% $ 8987 40% $ 13,480 6.0%
Tier | Capital
(to Average Assets)
Consolidated $23228 9.1% $10,177 4.0% n/a n/a
Consolidated $21,254 8.5% $10,006 40% $ 12,507 5.0%
December 31, 2006
Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) $18,740 11.1% $13,540 8.0% $ 16,925 10.0%
Tier | Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) $17,036 10.1% $ 6,770 40% $ 10,155 6.0%
Tier | Capital
(to Average Assets) $17,036 8.5% $ 8,062 40% $ 10,077 5.0%

Note 15. Transactionswith Related Parties

The Company has entered into transactions with its directors, significant shareholders and their affiliates (related parties). Such transactions were

made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral,

asthose prevailing

at the same time for comparabl e transactions with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of management, involve more than normal credit risk

or present other unfavorable features.

Aggregate loan transactions with related parties were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Balance, beginning
New loans
Repayments

Balance, ending

Deposit transactions with related parties at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were not material.
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Note 16. Parent Company Financial Data

Condensed statements of financial condition as of December 31, 2007, and rel ated statements of operations and cash flows for the period from
March 2, 2007 to December 31, 2007 are asfollows:

Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31, 2007

Assets

Cash and due from banks $ 4,138
Investment in subsidiary 21,517
Other assets 297

Total assets $25,952

Liabilitiesand Stockholders Equity

Liabilities
Accrued interest payable 20
Junior subordinated notes related to trust preferred securities 8,248
Total liabilities 8,268

Commitments and contingencies —

Stockholders' equity

Common stock, no par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 1,791,474 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 15,831
Retained earnings 1,590
Accumulated other comprehensive income 263
Total stockholders' equity 17,684
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $25,952

Condensed Statement of Operation
From March 2, 2007 (date of inception) to December 31, 2007

Equity in earnings of subsidiary $ 531
Dividends from bank subsidiary 272
Interest income 118
Dividend income 9
Interest expense (302
Income tax benefit 59
Net income $ 687
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Note 16. Parent Company Financial Data, continued

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
From March 2, 2007 (date of inception) to December 31, 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 687
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:
Equity in earnings of subsidiary (531)
Changesin assets and liabilities:
Other assets (49
Increase in accrued interest payable 20
Net cash provided by operating activities 127
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in subsidiary (4,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from subordinated debentures 8,000
Proceeds of exercise of stock options 11
Net cash provided by financing activities 8,011
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,138

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending $4,138
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid $ 282
Taxes paid $ —
Investment in non-bank subsidiary $ 248
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Stockholder Information

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholderswill be held on Thursday, May 8, 2008 at 7:00 p.m. at the newest banking office of Bank of Oak Ridge located
at 400 Pisgah Church Road, Greensboro, NC 27455.

Requestsfor Information

Requestsfor information should be directed to Mr. Ronald Black, President and CEO, or Mr. ThomasWayne, CFO, at Oak Ridge Financial
ServicesInc., P.O. Box 2, Oak Ridge, North Carolina, 27310; telephone (336) 644-9944.

I ndependent Auditors Stock Transfer Agent

Elliott Davis, PLLC First Citizens Bank & Trust Company
Certified Public Accountants Post Office Box 29522

Post Office Box 760 Raleigh, North Carolina 27626

Galax, Virginia24333

Federal Deposit | nsurance Corporation

The Bank isamember of the FDIC. This statement has not been reviewed, or confirmed for accuracy or relevance by the FDIC.

Banking Offices

2211 Oak Ridge Road 2102 North EIm Street
Oak Ridge, North Carolina 27310 Greensboro, North Carolina 27408
Phone: (336) 644-9944 Phone: (336) 272-1250
1597 New Garden Road 4423 Highway 220 North
Greensboro, North Carolina 27410 Summerfield, North Carolina 27358
Phone: (336) 315-2400 Phone: (336) 644-7310
400 Pisgah Church Road

Greenshoro, NC 27455
Phone: (336) 286-1900

http://www.bankofoakridge.com
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ITEM 8. CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 8A. CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, under the supervision and with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company (its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, respectively) have concluded based on their evaluation as of the end
of the period covered by this Report, that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by the Company in the reportsfiled or submitted by it under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the applicable rules and forms, and include controls and procedures designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in such reports is accumul ated and communi cated to the Company’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

ITEM BA(T). CONTROLSAND PROCEDURES

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in the
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). A system of internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabl e assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposesin accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer,
the Company’s management has evaluated the effectiveness of itsinternal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 based on the
criteria established in areport entitled “Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission” and the interpretive guidance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission in Release No. 34-55929. Based on this
evaluation, the Company’s management has eval uated and concluded that the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting was effective as
of December 31, 2007.

The Company is continuously seeking to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of its operations and of itsinternal controls. Thisresults
in modificationsto its processes throughout the Company. However, there has been no change in itsinternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or isreasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Thisannual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’sindependent registered public accounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting. The Company’s registered public accounting firm was not required to issue an attestation on itsinternal controls
over financial reporting pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Changesin Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There was no change in the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2007 that has
materially affected or isreasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, CONTROL PERSONS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE;
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

(a) Directorsand Executive Officers— Theinformation required by this Item regarding directors and executive officers of the Company is set
forth under the sections captioned “Proposal |—Election of Directors-Nominees’ and “Proposal |—Election of Directors—Executive Officers’ in
the Proxy Statement, which sections are incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Theinformation required by this Item regarding the Company’s Audit Committeeis set forth under the section captioned “— Audit
Committee” and “—Report of Audit Committee” in the Proxy Statement, which sections are incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Section 16(a) Compliance — Theinformation required by this Item regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended is set forth under the section captioned “ Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement,
which section isincorporated herein by reference.

(d) Nomination Procedures— There were no material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to the
Company’s Board of Directors since the Company last provided disclosures.

(e) Audit Committee Financial Expert — The information required about the Company’s Audit Committee Financial Expert is set forth under
the section captioned “Report of Audit Committee” in the Proxy Statement, which section isincorporated herein by reference.

(f) Code of Ethics— The Company has adopted its “ Code of Ethicsfor Senior Officers Policy”, a code of ethics that appliestoits senior
officers. The Code of Ethicsfor Senior Officers Policy is Exhibit 14 to this Report. In the event that the Company makes any amendment to, or
grants any waivers of, a provision of the Code of Ethicsfor Senior Officers Policy that applies to the principal executive officer or senior financial
officersthat requires disclosure under applicable SEC rules, the Company intends to disclose such amendment or waiver by filing aForm 8-K with
the SEC.

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is set forth under the sections captioned “Proposal |—Election of Directors-Director Compensation”
and “—Management Compensation” in the Proxy Statement, which sections are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERSAND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information required by this Itemis set forth under the section captioned “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners’ inthe
Proxy Statement, which section isincorporated herein by reference.

The equity compensation plan information required by this Item is set forth above in “Item 5 — Equity Compensation Plan Information.”
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ITEM 12 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPSAND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item is set forth under the section captioned “ Certain Indebtedness and Transactions of Management” in
the Proxy Statement, which section isincorporated herein by reference.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

For acomplete list of each director and nominee of the Company, see “ Proposal I-Election of Directors-Nominees’ in the Proxy Statement, which
section isincorporated herein by reference. Each director, except for Ronald O. Black, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, is “independent” as
defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the listing standards of NASDAQ. Each director serving on the Company’s Corporate Governance, Nominating and
Compensation Committee and the Company’s Audit Committee are “independent” as defined in Rule 4200(a)(15) of the listing standards of
NASDAQ.

ITEM 13.  EXHIBITS

13(a) Exhibits

Exhibit (3)(i) Articles of Incorporation, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3)(i) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 10, 2007.
Exhibit (3)(ii) Bylaws, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3)(ii) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 10, 2007.

Exhibit (4) Specimen Stock Certificate, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 10, 2007.

Exhibit (10)(i) Employment Agreement with Ronald O. Black, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(i) to the Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008.

Exhibit (10)(ii) Employment Agreement with L. William Vasaly, 111, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(ii) to the Form
8-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008.

Exhibit (10)(iii) Employment Agreement with Thomas W. Wayne, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(iii) to the Form 8-
K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008.

Exhibit (10)(iv) Outparcel Ground L ease between J.P. Monroe, L.L.C. and Bank of Oak Ridge dated June 1, 2002, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(iv) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008.

Exhibit (10)(v) Ground and Building L ease between KRS of Summerfield, LLC and Bank of Oak Ridge dated September 25, 2002, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(v) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008.

Exhibit (10)(vi) Ground L ease between Friendly Associates XVI1I1 LLLP and Bank of Oak Ridge dated September 13, 2004, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit (10)(vi) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008.

Exhibit (10)(vii)  Bank of Oak Ridge Second Amended and Restated Director Stock Option Plan (amended March 16, 2004; approved by
stockholders June 8, 2004), incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(vii) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 28,
2008.
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Exhibit (10)(viii)

Exhibit (10)(ix)

Exhibit (10)(x)

Exhibit (10)(xi)

Exhibit (10)(xii)

Exhibit (10)(iii)

Exhibit (10)(xiv)

Exhibit (10)(xv)

Exhibit (10)(xvi)

Exhibit (10)(xvii)

Exhibit (10)(xviii)
Exhibit (11)
Exhibit (14)

Exhibit (21)
Exhibit (31.1)
Exhibit (31.2)
Exhibit (32)

Bank of Oak Ridge Second Amended and Restated Employee Stock Option Plan (amended March 16, 2004; approved by
stockholders June 8, 2004), incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(viii) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
March 28, 2008.

Salary Continuation Agreements with Ronald O. Black dated January 20, 2006, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)
(ix) to Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008.

Salary Continuation Agreement with L. William Vasaly dated January 20, 2006, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)
(x) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2007

Salary Continuation Agreement with Thomas W. Wayne dated January 20, 2006, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(xi) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2008

Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between Bank of Oak Ridge and Ronald O. Black, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(xiii) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 21, 2007.

Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between Bank of Oak Ridge and L. William Vasaly 11, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(xiv) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 21, 2007.

Amended Endorsement Split Dollar Agreement between Bank of Oak Ridge and Thomas W. Wayne, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit (10)(xv) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 21, 2007.

Indemnification Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(xvi) to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March
7, 2008.

Contract for the Purchase and Sale of Real Property, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on January 14, 2008.

Oak Ridge Financial Services, Inc. Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(xiii) to the
Form 10-QSB filed with the SEC on May 15, 2007.

Bank of Oak Ridge 2007 Annual Incentive Plan.
Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Earnings.

Code of Ethicsfor Senior Officers Policy incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14 to the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
March 28, 2008.

Subsidiary of the Company.

Certification of Ronald O. Black.

Certification of Thomas W. Wayne.

Certificate of Periodic Financial Report Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEESAND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is set forth under the sections captioned “ Audit Fees Paid to Independent Auditor” and “Pre-
Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services’ in the Proxy Statement, which sections are incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

BANK OF OAK RIDGE
By: /S Ronald O. Black

Dated: March 17, 2008 Ronald O. Black
President and Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s Ronald O. Black President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 17, 2008
Ronald O. Black
/sl Thomas W. Wayne Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer March 17, 2008
Thomas W. Wayne
/9 L. William Vasaly, 111 Senior Vice President and Chief Credit Officer March 17, 2008
L. William Vasaly, 111
/s Douglas G. Boike Director March 17, 2008
Douglas G. Boike
/s/ Herbert M. Cole Director March 17, 2008
Herbert M. Cole
/9 Francis R. Disney Director March 17, 2008
Francis R. Disney
/9 Craig Fleming Director March 17, 2008
Craig Fleming
/s/ James W. Hall Director March 17, 2008
James W. Hall
/9 Billy R. Kanoy Director March 17, 2008
Billy R. Kanoy
/s Lynda J. Lengyel Director March 17, 2008
LyndaJ. Lengyel
/sl Stephen S. Neal Director March 17, 2008
Stephen S. Neal
/s/ John S. Olmsted Director March 17, 2008
John S. Olmsted
/s/ Manuel L. Perkins Director March 17, 2008

Manuel L. Perkins
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Exhibit No. Description

Exhibit (10)(xviii) ~ Bank of Oak Ridge 2007 Annual Incentive Plan

Exhibit (11) Statement Regarding Computation of Per Share Earnings

Exhibit (21) Subsidiary of the Company

Exhibit (31.1) Certification of Ronad O. Black

Exhibit (31.2) Certification of Thomas W. Wayne

Exhibit (32) Certification of Periodic Financial Report Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

83
(Back To Top)

Section 2: EX-10.(XVI11) (BANK OF OAK RIDGE 2007 ANNUAL
INCENTIVE PLAN)

Exhibit 10(xviii)

BANK OF OAK RIDGE
2007 ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Bank of Oak Ridge Annual Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) isto provide key employees of Bank of Oak Ridge (the “Bank”)
with the opportunity to receive payments of additional compensation distributed based upon the earnings of the Bank, and on the achievement of
abroad set of corporate and/or individual objectives (the “ Objectives’). The Plan provides an incentive to employees to enhance the size and
earnings of the Bank, within the constraints of safe, sound banking practices.

At the sametime it must be emphasized that the Plan in no way contravenes the importance of either long-term goal achievement or the
proper exercise of appropriate management accountability. These goals and areas of accountability include, but are not limited to, the following
items:

Collection, recovery, charge-off, and bankruptcy activity.

Maintenance and increase in market share through salesmanship and customer service.

Continued salesmanship (call programs) and improved customer service.

Employee management and devel opment (staff supervision, tracking and cross-training, employee turnover, etc.)
Development of new and better ways of doing business.

Appropriate audit and documentation procedures.

Responsible management of fixed assets/resources.

Adherenceto all Bank policy and philosophy.

Maintenance of the highest ethical standards.

©WooNTOr~WDNE

It isanticipated that the [imited amount of incentive potential available through the Plan, as compared to the size of salaries and incentives
paid for performance of these long term management accountabilities, in conjunction with the controls built into the performance measuresin the
Plan, will create the appropriate focus. The Board of Directors, through the Compensation Committee (the “ Committee”), and the Chief Executive
Officer administersthe plan.

At the Committee’ s discretion funds may be used to pay discretionary bonuses. As an example an employee with outstanding overall
performance could receive a discretionary bonus in recognition of performance unaccounted for through the plan. It is understood that
discretionary bonuses will be an exception as opposed to therule.

2. Effective Date and Plan Year
The Effective Date of the Plan shall be January 1, 2008. The Plan Y ear shall be the calendar year.

3. Eligibility
Anindividual shall be eligible to become a Participant in the Plan who satisfied the following requirements:
a Theindividual isan employee of the Bank. For this purpose, an individual shall be considered to be an “employee” if there

exists between the individual and the Bank the legal and bona fide relationship of employer and employee. An individual shall
be considered an employee if he/sheisregularly scheduled to work at least 20 hours per week.



b. Theindividual employees' position is considered by the Committee to be “key” and to have adirect impact on the size and
earnings of the Bank.

C. Theindividual is approved by the Compensation Committee as a Participant in the Plan.



4. Participation

Prior to the beginning of each Plan Y ear, the Chief Executive Officer shall recommend to the Compensation Committee each individual or
position eligible to become a Participant in the Plan (a“ Participant™) with respect to such Plan Y ear. Participants shall be approved by the
Compensation Committeeinits discretion. In the event of the promotion of an employee or the hiring of anew employee during the Plan Y ear, the
Compensation Committee, upon the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, may approve the entry of a Participant into the Plan Y ear.
However, if the position has been previously approved, no such approval shall be required. In such case, the Incentive Award determined under
Section 5 with respect to such Participant shall be the percentage as determined by the Compensation Committee for the position multiplied by the
individual’s job salary grade range mid-point during the period of time he or she was eligible to participate. However, in no event shall an employee
be a Participant for less than the full final three months of the Plan Y ear. Participation in the Plan shall be subject to the provisions of the Plan and
such other terms and conditions, as the Compensation Committee shall provide.

5. Incentive Award

5.1 Subject to Section 5.2, each Participant for aPlan Y ear shall receive an Incentive Award determined by multiplying the percentage
achieved of each of the individual’'s objectives (“key drivers’) by aweighting factor (positive or negative). A Potential Award isthen multiplied by
the sum of the weights derived. When no individual objectivesrelated to aPlan Y ear have been determined for a Participant, then the Participant’s
objectives for the purpose of this Plan shall be the Corporate Objectives approved by the Committee at the beginning of such Plan Y ear.

For purposes of this section 5, the following definitions shall apply:

“Potential Award” means with respect to each Participant for the Plan Y ear adollar amount determined by multiplying theindividual’s
salary by apercentage designed by the Compensation Committee. The Potential Award represents the Incentive Award payableto the
Participant in the event that Corporate and Participant’s personal objectives are achieved for the Plan Y ear. In the event that no
personal objectives are established for aPlan Y ear, the Potential Award represents the Incentive Award payable to the Participant in
the event that all of the Corporate Objectives established at the beginning of the Plan Y ear are fully achieved for the Plan Y ear.

“Adjusted Potential Award” isthe pro-rata share of a pool established by the sum of all participants’ Potential awardsin the Plan year.
The pool is accrued based upon the achievements of net income (pre-incentive, pretax) objectives established by the CEO and
approved by the Compensation Committee.

“Incentive Award” means by multiplying the actual cash value paid to the participant at the end of the Plan period, determined by
multiplying the percentage of each of the individual’s objectives (established by the Chief Executive Officer), by weighting factor
(positive or negative) established by the Chief Executive Officer, and multiplying that by the adjusted potential Award pro-rataasto
saary.

5.2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Plan, the Compensation Committee shall review and approve the payment of the Incentive
Award as determined under Section 5.1 and, in its discretion, may adjust the amount of the payment as it deems necessary to meet the purpose of
this Plan and the best interest of the Bank. In no event shall an Incentive Award be paid to a Participant who in the sole determination of the
Compensation Committee has violated established policies and practices of the Bank as reflected in the minutes of the Board. Where
interpretations of achievement of objectives are inconsistent, the judgment of the Compensation Committee will prevail.



Individual objectives are not to be achieved at the expense of the overall Bank objectives or long-term objectives of any individual. For
example, if an employee achievesindividual objectives, but in so doing clearly creates unnecessary strife among peers or subordinates, violates
policy, avoids behaviors that develop businessin the long term, or in any way ignores the best interest of the Bank, then no Incentive Award will
be paid.

6. Termination of Employment during Plan Y ear

The Participant shall not receive an Incentive Award with respect to aPlan Y ear if, for reasons other than a Termination Event as defined in
this Section 6, the employment of the Participant by the Bank, or a Subsidiary, isterminated during the Plan Y ear or the duties of the position of the
Participant are changed during the Plan Y ear so that he/sheis no longer in a position as described in Section 3. The following shall each constitute
a“Termination Event”:

a Death of the Participant while employed by the Bank.
b. Retirement of the Participant from the Bank with the approval of the Board.

C. Disability of the Participant while employed by the Bank. For this purpose, the term “disability” shall mean the inability of a
Participant, by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or
to be of long continued or of indefinite duration, to perform his duties for the Bank. The determination of disability shall be
made by the Compensation Committee based on medical evidence from an independent physician selected by the Participant
with the approval of the Compensation Committee; and, shall date from the original cessation of work.

In the event of a Termination Event, the Participant or his Beneficiary shall receive an Incentive Award with respect to such Plan Y ear equal
to the amount determined under Section 5 multiplied by afraction, the numerator of which isthe number of full calendar months during the Plan
Y ear in which he was a Participant prior to the Termination Event and the denominator of which istwelve. Participantsin multiple selected
positions, each determined to be a participant position should receive an amount reflecting the time-weighted service in each position. Participants
departing a Participant position for a non-Participant position, provided that such departureis not pursuant to poor performance, shall receive an
award reflecting the period of the year in which they served.

7. L eaves of Absence

In general, the determination of award for an individual who has taken aleave of absence during the Plan Y ear shall mirror the pro-rata
payout provisions of termination. However, the Compensation Committee, acting on behalf of the Board of Directors, shall in its sole discretion
determine the amount of award in each case so asto preserve the intent of the Plan.

8. Payment of I ncentive Awards

Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee, the Incentive Award for aPlan Y ear shall be paid by the Bank in cash to the
Participant or his Beneficiary by the later of (i) March 15 following the end of the Plan Y ear, or (ii) thirty days following the determination of the
actual financial resultsfor the Plan Y ear and the final achievement of the Participant’sindividual objectives (if applicable). A Participant must be an
employee on the day of payment in order to be eligible.

9. Nonassignability of Incentive Awards

Theright to receive payment of the Incentive Award shall not be assignable or transferable (including by pledge or hypothecation) other
than by will or the laws of intestate succession.




10. No Trust Fund: Unsecured I nterest

A Participant shall have no interest in any fund or specified asset of the Bank. No trust fund shall be created in connection with the Plan or
any Incentive Award, and there shall be no required funding of amounts, which may become payable under this Plan. Any amounts which are or
may be set aside under the provisions of this Plan shall continue for all purposesto be apart of the general assets of the Bank, and no person
other than the Bank shall, by virtue of the provisions of this Plan, have any interest in such assets. No right to receive payment from the Bank
pursuant to the Plan shall be greater than the right of any unsecured creditor of the Bank.

11. No Right or Obligation of Continued Employment

Nothing contained in the Plan shall require the Bank to continue to employ the Participant, nor shall the Participant be required to remain in
the employment of the Bank.

12. Withholding

There shall be deducted from the payment of the Incentive Award the amount of any tax or other amount required by any governmental
authority to be withheld and paid over by the Bank to such authority for the account of the person entitled to such payment.

13. Retirement Plans

In no event shall any amounts accrued or payable under this Plan be treated as compensation for the purpose of determining the amount of
contributions or benefits to which a Participant shall be entitled under any retirement plan to which the Bank may be a party. Actual payments (as
opposed to accruals) will be treated as compensation for accruing benefits under all retirement/pension plans, if such plansinclude bonuses or
incentivesin their definition of compensation.

14. Dilution or Other Adjustments

If thereisany changein the Bank because of amerger, consolidation or reorganization involving the Bank, the Compensation Committee
shall make such adjustments to any provisions of this Plan, asthe Compensation Committee deems desirable to prevent the dilution or
enlargement of rights granted hereunder.

15. Administration of the Plan

The Plan shall be administered by the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank with the consent and approval of the Board; provided, that all
matters pertaining to the Incentive Award of the Chief Executive Officer shall be determined by the Compensation Committee. Subject to the
provisions of the Plan, the Compensation Committee shall have plenary authority in its discretion, among other things, to designate the
Participants to receive Incentive Awards, to determine the Potential Award of each Participant, to interpret the Plan and to prescribe, amend and
rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, provided that no member of the Board shall take part in any action with respect to the decisions
to pay an Incentive Award to such member, or with respect to the terms or conditions of any Incentive Award awarded to such member.

16. Amendment and Termination of the Plans

The Plan may be amended or terminated at any time by the Board.

17. Binding on Successor s

The obligations of the Bank under the Plan shall be binding upon any organization, which shall succeed, to all or substantially all of the
assets of the Bank, and the term “Bank,” whenever used in the Plan, shall mean and include any such organization after the succession.

18. Applicable Law
The Plan shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina.
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Section 3: EX-11 (STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF PER
SHARE EARNINGYS)

EXHIBIT (11)
STATEMENT REGARDING COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS

Theinformation required by this Exhibit is set forth under Note 1 “ Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Basic
Earnings per Share” and “—Diluted Earnings per Share” and Note 10 “ Earnings per Share” of the Company’sfinancial statementsin “ITEM 7-
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS’ of this Form 10-KSB.
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Section 4: EX-21 (SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY)

EXHIBIT (21)



SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY
The Company has one subsidiary, Bank of Oak Ridge, a North Carolina state-chartered bank.
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Section 5: EX-31.1 (SECTION 302 CEO CERTIFICATION)

EXHIBIT (31.1)
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Ronald O. Black, certify that:
| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB of Oak Ridge Financial Services, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state amaterial fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by thisreport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in thisreport, fairly present in all material
respects, the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small businessissuer as of, and for, the periods presented in
thisreport;

4.  Thesmall businessissuer’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(€) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Securities
Exchange Act Rules 13(a) — 15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under the
Company'’s supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small businessissuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to the Company by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report the
Company'’s conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the small businessissuer’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
small businessissuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small businessissuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or isreasonably likely to materially affect, the small businessissuer’sinternal control over financial reporting; and

5. Thesmall businessissuer’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on the Company’s most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the small businessissuer’s auditors and the audit committee of the small business issuer’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessesin the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the small businessissuer’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant rolein the small business
issuer’sinternal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2008 /s/ Ronad O. Black
Ronald O. Black
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Section 6: EX-31.2 (SECTION 302 CFO CERTIFICATION)

EXHIBIT (31.2)
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas W. Wayne, certify that:
| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB of Bank of Oak Ridge;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state amaterial fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period



covered by thisreport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in thisreport, fairly present in all material
respects, the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small businessissuer as of, and for, the periods presented in
thisreport;

4.  Thesmall businessissuer’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(€) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Securities
Exchange Act Rules 13(a) — 15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under the
Bank’s supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small businessissuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to the Bank by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small businessissuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report the
Bank’s conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the small businessissuer’sinternal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
small businessissuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small businessissuer’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or isreasonably likely to materially affect, the small businessissuer’sinternal control over financial reporting; and

5. Thesmall businessissuer’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on the Bank’s most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the small businessissuer’s auditors and the audit committee of the small businessissuer’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessesin the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the small businessissuer’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant rolein the small business
issuer’sinternal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2008 /sl Thomas W. Wayne

Thomas W. Wayne
Sr. Vice President and Chief Financia Officer

87
(Back To Top)

Section 7: EX-32 (SECTION 906 CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION)

EXHIBIT (32)
OAK RIDGE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

Certification of Periodic Financial Report
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned officers of Oak
Ridge Financial Services, Inc. (the “ Company”) certify that the Annual Report on Form 10-K SB of the Company for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
information contained in that Form 10-K SB fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: March 17, 2008 /s/ Ronad O. Black

Ronald O. Black
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 17, 2008 /sl Thomas W. Wayne

Thomas W. Wayne
Chief Financia Officer

*This certification is made solely for purpose of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledge standard contained therein, and not for any other
purpose.
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